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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFAEH

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Yao Jie

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Company Secretary

Ms. Yue Cheuk Ying

Qualified Accountant

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Audit Committee

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Hung Wai Man

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

02 vVvSTHOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

EEg
HITES
TEMEE(EEFTH
TENTEAE
FRELZ L
BRI P A&
FHEE

ARk E
EHITES
RIRFEE
BIYFHITESE
TREE
EmEyLL

HRREE
ThRtL

NEWE
sEmEt
EEBREEHAED
FRA S
EREES
BB 4 (2F)
sk

HRREE
FegEss

yMEES

FREE(EE)
EmBtE
HRRELE
ThRLL



Nomination Committee

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Auditors

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A., Hong Kong Branch
Banco Santander S.A., Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Hangzhou

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

China Bohai Bank

China Citic Bank International

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Chong Hing Bank

Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch

CTBC Bank

DBS Bank

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch
Fubon Bank

Hang Seng Bank

ICICI Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
KBC Bank N.V.

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Standard Chartered Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Taishin International Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
United Overseas Bank

(The above are shown according to alphabetical order)
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Corporate Information (continued)
NEER (&)

Investor and Media Relations Consultant

Aries Consulting Limited

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit 3312, 33rd Floor

China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2]

2016 marks the 25th anniversary of VSTECS since its inception in 1991. In
the past 25 years, VSTECS has always maintained a topping-the-industry
growth momentum with continuous rapid development of business scope
and service coverage. It registered another record revenue of HK$48.2
billion in 2016. Looking back to VSTECS's revenue of HK$1.6 billion upon
its listing in 2002, this figure implies an amazing growth of more than 30
times in its revenue over the past 14 years.

Thanks to our active business exploration, product diversification and
expansion of service portfolio in the past 25 years, VSTECS has become
the largest science and technology product solutions and supply chain
service platform in Asia Pacific region. It has a distribution network across
nine countries covering China, Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia,
Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos and Philippines. More than 170 of its upstream
partners are among Top 500 science & technology enterprises in the world.
[t has more than 40,000 downstream business partners. The business of
VSTECS include five business segments, namely supply chain business,
components business, finished products business, enterprise systems
and value-added service, and covers ten fields such as cloud computing,
mobile interconnection, system equipment, software, information security,
game machine, virtual reality, artificial intelligence product, assembled
computers and peripherals. Moreover, we have been actively venturing
into new business of supply chain finance.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, |
am pleased to present to shareholders
the annual report of VST Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”
or “VSTECS?”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Looking back to 2016, the Group has experienced positive changes in
development strategy, corporate image and business development. With
the vision of “providing quality life to businesses and consumers”, the Group
aims to become a comprehensive platform company with online and offline
full channels by creating a new ecological system where technologies,
financing and value-added internet services are incorporated. In order to
improve our corporate image, we changed our company logo in early 2016
in line with our strategies.

During this period, VSTECS also aggressively ventured into new product
line such as GoPro HD camera, Garmin intelligent sports watch, Amazon
Kindle electronic reader, VIVE series VR product under HTC, Connaught
smart portable projector and other new science & technology products
which represent future science & technology and quality life by focusing on
strategic upgrade; other new well-known partners include F-engine, Jabra
sport headphones, UBNT WIFI product, Moto router, Nimble Storage flash
memory and Sungreen Honweb network products. We have become the
exclusive distributor of games of “Thors” and “Wodenses” games under
Haier Group. With regards cloud service, we have entered into strategic
cooperation with QingCloud to build professional cloud service.

In order to cope with the trend of quality life, the Group actively conducted
strategic investment, made inroads into fast-growing sectors such as
consumption upgrade and medical health. In particular, the Group invested
USD30 million in March 2016 for aircraft leasing project.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEBREE (&)

Regional Development

Geographically, VSTECS increased efforts on penetrating the market of
enterprise system services in Mainland China. The online procurement
platform and offline chain retail experience store in preparation will be put into
service in 2017, aiming to provide comprehensive procurement service for
enterprises, retailers and end customers. Currently, the online procurement
platform in Malaysian area can provide 24-hour procurement service for
enterprises and retail customers. Now it has 2,000 registered users and 800
active users with an average monthly revenue of HK$19 million. We believe
that the online procurement platform will cover the whole market in China
when it is launched, and further expand our market share.

In October 2016, VSTECS opened the first experience store for MIUI in
Singapore. Due to enthusiastic market response, we will open two additional
stores for MIUI'in 2017. Moreover, VSTECS will open retail experience stores
in China in 2017 so as to provide comprehensive online and offline platform.

For Thailand, VSTECS will further develop the markets surrounding Thailand
through the country, including Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos, and made
aggressively explore the possibility of cooperation with local enterprise
customers and upstream factories in setting up data centers.

For Indonesia, VSTECS achieved double-digit growth in revenue and net
profit in Indonesia despite unstable Indonesia currency. With a population of
260 million people, the developing country has a huge development potential.

Pegged to US dollar, Philippines’s exchange rate is more stable than other
countries in Southeast Asia. The Group recorded more than 20% growth
in terms of local revenue, and will continue to expand the market share in
the future.
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Prospects

The Group seeks breakthrough continuously. It has integrated the supply
chain service platform for IT products in Asia Pacific region, and built the
competitive edge for achieving topping-the-industry growth. In addition to
developing mobile internet products, storage solutions and cloud computing,
we will also conduct integration and innovation using Internet, intelligent
terminal, big data and other advanced information technologies to provide
online procurement platform and offline chain retail experience stores for
enterprise customers and consumers, so as to offer a comprehensive 020
(Offline-to-Online) service.

In the future, the Group will enter a rapid development track. Leveraging on
its well-established relationship with our vendors, sizeable regional network,
rigorous internal workflow and strong management team, the Group is set
to refresh its record highs. Despite the increasingly changes in the industry
and various challenges posed by market conditions, the Group will still be
able to maintain its robust growth. In addition to the expansion into emerging
markets in South-eastern Asia, the Group will increase our market share in
countries such as China and countries in South-eastern Asia, and put greater
efforts in stepping up value-added services such as the enterprise systems
business and offline retail experience stores to increase its profitability.

I would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the Group.
| would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude
to all our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion towards their
duties and to thank our Board members and business partners for their trust
and support. We are confident in overcoming various challenges ahead and
will make the best effort to maximise returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION

XEGEBRARERLSR

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has 81 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos. The five
main businesses are supply chain business, components business, finished
products business, enterprise systems and IT services. The supply chain
business and components business, finished products business segments,
leading IT vendors such as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital,
Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more
use the Group’s network of over 40,000 channel partners in the region to
distribute their products. The enterprise systems segment designs, installs
and implements IT infrastructure for companies, while the IT services
segment provides a comprehensive range of professional, technical support
and training services.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 25 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 40,000 resellers, comprising
retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These resellers not only
market a wide range of products but they also provide support and repair
services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group has recorded another record high in revenue. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$48,161,318,000
(2015: HK$45,575,640,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to HK$1,856,738,000 (2015: HK$1,697,001,000). Operating
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$799,836,000
(2015: HK$677,069,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$551,915,000 (2015: HK$450,381,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK 38.27 cents (2015:
HK29.94 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the supply chain business segment decreased
by 2.5% to HK$8,400,525,000, contributing 17.4% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the components business and finished products
business segments increased by 3.7% to HK$23,209,932,000, contributing
48.2% of the total Group revenue. Revenue from the enterprise systems
segment increased by 13.3% to HK$16,283,214,000, contributing 33.8%
of the total Group revenue. Revenue from IT services segment increased to
HK$267,647,000, contributing 0.6% of the total Group revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in
the year ended 31 December 2016. During the year, revenue generated in
North Asia increased by 6.6% to HK$39,222,760,000, contributing 81%
of the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East Asia increased by
1.8% to HK$8,938,558,000, contributing 19% of the total Group revenue.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order
to provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified
product lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital,
Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates as well as others that are common to most if not all other businesses.
The directors have established a policy to ensure that significant risks which
may adversely affect the Group’s performance and ability to deliver on its
strategies, as well as those which may present positive opportunities, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are shown
in note 3 to the financial statements.
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products will enable us to continue to drive growth
for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to increase market
shares as well as the range of products offered. This will enable the Group
to continue to focus on growth in all business segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand
our business into mobility devices and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.

V
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$1,980,026,000 (2015: approximately HK$3,233,727,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$4,245,041,000 (2015: approximately HK$5,621,014,000). The gearing
ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by
total equity, was 0.59 (2015: 0.63).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded total current
assets of approximately HK$15,055,941,000 (2015: approximately
HK$15,771,714,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$10,541,032,000 (2015: approximately HK$11,930,811,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the
total current liabilities, was approximately 1.43 times as at 31 December
2016 (2015: approximately 1.32 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$3,819,107,000 as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$3,863,638,000 as at 31 December 2016.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars and Renminbi.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi,
Indonesian rupiah.

Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases and a building pledged against secured mortgage
loan as set out in notes 5 and 18 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 2,626 (2015: 2,535) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible employees
by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual performance.
Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement schemes. The
net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$549,016,000 (2015: approximately HK$467,454,000).
The Group also provides training courses or seminars to its staff.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 55, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr. Li is
also the director of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited
(“VST Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company.
He is responsible for the overall management and
strategic positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated
from Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of
China with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in
1983 and a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is
the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 45, is an
Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the director of
VST Computers, a subsidiary of the Company. He
is responsible for the overall financial management
of the Group. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from University College London and a
Master Degree in Analysis, Design & Management
of Information Systems from the London School
of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 48, is an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Operating Officer of
the Company. Ms. Chow has been working with
the Group since 1996. Ms. Chow started working in
business development for the East and North China
region and was appointed as operation director of
the Company in 2002. Currently, Ms. Chow is the
director of VST Computers and ECS Technology
(China) Limited (“ECS China”), both are subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Chow is responsible for the overall business operations
and management of VST Computers, and operation review and management
of the development in ERP solution for ECS China. Ms. Chow holds a
Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honours) in International Business from the
University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
BEERPFAIMEERE (E)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 47, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan has over 20
years of experience in personal computer and
semiconductor industry. Mr. Chan is currently the
Senior Vice President — Product Management
of VST Computers, an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan
served as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in
charge of the distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 28, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012 and is currently the Vice
President — Channel Sales of VST Computers, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for sales and distribution in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University of
Chicago in the United States of America. Mr. Liis the
son of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YAO Jie, aged 38, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Yao
joined the Company in October 2015 as Senior
Vice President, Strategy and Investment of the
Company. Mr. Yao is mainly responsible for strategy
development, merger and acquisition projects
and investment, brand communication as well as
corporate social responsibility of the Company.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yao served
as Executive Director and President of New Energy Exchange Limited,
which is a subsidiary of China Merchants New Energy Group, and Chief
Communications Officer and Spokesperson of United Photovoltaics Group
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company under China Merchants Group,
responsible for investor relations management and capital market practices.
From 2009 to 2013, Mr. Yao served as Chief Representative and General
Manager of Investor Relations at China XLX Fertiliser Limited, the largest
private-owned urea producer in PRC, responsible for investor relations
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

and offshore fundraising. Previously, Mr. Yao worked in several sizable
and prestigious companies including a NASDAQ listed company, a largest
independent brand communications firm in the United Kingdom as well as
a top Chinese public relation company. Mr. Yao has more than 15 years’
extensive experiences in listed company management, investor relations,
capital market fundraising as well as brand communications.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LIANG Xin, aged 45, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in December
2013. Mr. Liang graduated with a Bachelor Degree
from the Department of Statistics of the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in the People’s
Republic of China in 1992. Mr. Liang obtained a
Master Degree in Finance from the Xiamen University
in the PRC in 2005. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Liang
has held various positions in the PRC government
and the private sector. Mr. Liang has worked as a section officer in the
Division of Human Resources and Education of Fujian Provincial Department
of Finance. Mr. Liang has also worked as a section officer in &i&%E E{Z
FEI&E A A (Fujian Huaxing Trust and Investment Company Limited). Mr.
Liang has worked as a head of general office in = # 35 #* (Huaxing Securities
Company Limited) (“Huaxing Securities”) and has held the position of general
manager in the Research and Development Department, the Securities
Trading Department and the Investment Banking Department in Huaxing
Securities where he was responsible for the stock and futures trading and
investment banking businesses. Mr. Liang has participated in a number of
initial public offering, listing recommendation, reorganisation and acquisition
and distribution work in the PRC. Since June 2004, Mr. Liang has served
as head of investment department, secretary of the board of directors, and
vice president in Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (
I E TR B A FESE AL (D AR A A), the issued shares of which are listed in
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
BEERPFAIMEERE (E)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 62, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 20 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is now an independent non-executive director of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Qianhai Health Holdings Limited,
the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 53, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong

. Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
— Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
" Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is

- a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Q Certified Accountants and an associate member of

the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 26 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an
independent non-executive director of China Environmental Technology
and Bioenergy Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit
Committee and members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. HUNG Wai Man, JP, aged 48, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in May 2016. Mr. Hung is the President of Internet
Professional Association, Executive Chairman of
Chinese Big Data Society, Academic Committee
Member of PanGoal Institution and Principal Liaison
Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen Qianhai Authority.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel
investor. He has worked in the computer industry
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

for 30 years. A well-known figure in the industry, Mr. Hung has extensive
experience in management consulting, project management and outsourcing
services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology Professional and a
fellow of the British Computer Society, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
the Hong Kong Computer Society and the Internet Professional Association.
He has been appointed as the Director and the eminent expert representing
Hong Kong and China by the World Summit Awards.

Mr. Hung is currently the Vice Chairman of China Overseas Friendship
Association’s Youth Committee, Member of the Shenzhen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Member of the Chinese Association of
Hong Kong and Macau Studies, Vice President of Guangdong’s Association
For Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao,
Commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol, Chairman Emeritus of
the Y.Elites Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte Jade Science and
Technology Association of Hong Kong, Secretary General of Hong Kong-
ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation and Council Member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association etc. In 2012 to
2014, he had served as an associate member of the Central Policy Unit of
the HKSAR Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was selected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He was the 11th Standing
Member of the All China Youth Federation. In 2015, he was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he was
given the Asia Social Innovation Leadership Award by CMO Asia.

Mr. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher
Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He then obtained a BA(Hons)
from the University of Bolton, MBA from the University of Hull and MA in
Public and Comparative History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a LLM from the Renmin University of China and PhD in
Business Administration from Bulacan State University, the Philippines and
is currently pursuing his LLD study with the Renmin University of China.
Mr. Hung also serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 61, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
BEERPFAIMEERE (E)

From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National Economic System
Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research Office, later he
was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to 1994, he acted
as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-Tech Industry
Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed to many important
positions, such as director, deputy general manager of Hong Kong Jing-
Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager and chairman of
board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited, board director
and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company Limited, and
the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice president of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present, Mr. Wang acts
as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust and Investment
Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing International Trust
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 36, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the
Group in 2009.

22 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

R=ANAFE-ANEF  FREHER
RREBERANNEZEGMRMEELME - Hi
EEARAEEIE R—ANAZTFE-—NNIADN
FoRELRTHXMEXRAERE L -
EBRAEE R -ANEFE-AANF

ZEZFEEERL  WEERFREX(E
B)ERAREE  BAKE : EERZUH
ERAFBMERKE EER: BERTIEFA
RAREE  BLE: RBEBRFIERE
ﬁ@ﬂﬂ%%%oi%i%%ﬁ??%ﬁ@
&iﬁﬁ%%%@%ﬁ°§—hﬂﬂii§
S EREAHELEREREEREERA
(ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@u)@%ﬁ%
BEER -

TAREERBUEEREMRENEREOEERET

fE - BMRNER - E  EFEkREE2TA
REEERR  UNRFTEZFARS - I
EERZEKRE HF - #E ZFH BX
AABREELZEIRATEREREREZL

B IRENMEELARAREZZES - HH
ZEBGRERZEEKE -

NEWE

REREZLT 36m NR_FT——FhAEZ
ERRRAZARME  BEAKEZWE

FH EEARAMTABERARARUETH
(RBEI)XBIE2UREXGHLEERE

BREIEN  RABTERAWESLAEEER
HHAWERTBRAEAEEER - KRR _ZF
NEMAREHE -

>
Hm
M\

2



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R

This Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, which covers the overall performance, policies and practices
of the Group’s business and operations in terms of its environmental and
social responsibilities, for the year ended 31 December 2016.

As a leading distributor of Information, Communication and Technology
(“ICT”) products in Asia, we strive to maximize the long-term benefits of all
our stakeholders by continuously communicating with them and effectively
balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to achieve
sustainable development of the Company.

A. Environmental Protection

The Group undertakes environmental protection as part of its corporate
responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance of sustainable
environmental development in promoting sustainability in its operations.
The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment.

Emissions

As our business is mainly trading in nature, the operations of our
Group does not have significant impacts on air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group is minimal. During the year
under review, the Group did not have any non-compliance issues
related to the environmental laws and regulations.

Use of Resources

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while
endeavours to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent the
unnecessary waste of resources and minimize the impacts on the
environment and natural resources.
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Environmental Social and Governance Report (continued)

Due to the nature of our business, the resources used by the Group
are principally attributed to electricity and paper consumed at our
offices and warehouses. The Group continues its commitment in
reducing the energy consumption by reminding employees to switch
off their computers before leaving office, switch off the lighting in the
conference rooms and other functional rooms when they are not in use
and turn the electronic equipment into energy-saving mode whenever
possible. The Group continues the efforts in reducing and recycling of
paper usage, by reminding our staff to have environmentally friendly
printing and photocopying habit, encouraging double-sided printing
and scanning documents to the Company’s server system rather
photocopying whenever possible, implementing password system
for colour printing and separate collection of waste paper and used
envelopes for reuse and recycling.

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact
and use of natural resources is considered minimal.

Social

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous
community atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote
long-term corporate benefit. Through the areas on our employment
and labour practices, operational practices and social involvement,
we establish a mutually beneficial relationship with our internal and
external stakeholders.

Employment

The Group believes that employees are the most important and
valuable assets contributing to the key of success and sustainable
growth of the Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies
with all the relevant labour laws and regulations under respective
jurisdictions. The Group treats all the employees equally that their
employment, remuneration, promotion or dismissal will not be affected
by their social identities such as race, nationality, gender, religion,
age and marital status.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a yearly basis based on
individual performance and the market situation. Employees are also
entitled to discretionary bonus, share options and Company’s shares
to recognize their contributions to the Group by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual performance. Other benefits
include medical insurance, paid leave and retirement scheme are
provided.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Health and Safety

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group
is committed to maintain a safe and healthy working environment
and offer occupational safety training to employees. The Group also
provides guidelines to staff in warehouses in order to raise awareness
on occupational safety and health. For example, warning notice is
placed around the warehouse for reminding the employees careful
operation of electric reach trucks. During the year under review,
the Group did not have any work related fatality case or any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Apart from workplace safety, a healthy lifestyle is promoted to the
employees. The Group organizes annual dinner, Christmas party and
Chinese New Year lunch every year to share the joy and happiness
amongst the employees and enhance their sense of belonging. Also,
to have a better work-life balance between the employees, overtime
working is not encouraged unless it is necessary. Employees are
encouraged to participate in other activities such as sports or other
interest courses to achieve a healthy work-life balance.

Development and Training

The Group considers development and training is one of the important
elements contributing the success of the Group. The Group provides
on-the-job and internal training to different level of staff. Employees
are also highly encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that related to their job nature to enrich their knowledge
in discharging their duties. Our training covers products knowledge,
sales and marketing, operational skills, workflow management skills,
leadership and management skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
BRI -HERERKRSE ()

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant rules and regulations
in relevant jurisdictions relating to child and forced labour. The
Group prohibits the employment of child and forced labour in any
of our operations. All the employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

Every potential job applicant is required to complete the employment
application form, which will be checked and reviewed by the Human
Resource Department to ensure the information provided is accurate.
During the year under review, the Group did not have an issues relating
to child or forced labour or any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

As aleading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms
a very essential part in the Group. The Group implements an efficient
supply chain management system that strengthen the role of different
parties between suppliers, distributors and retailers and to ensure
high quality of services and products are delivered to our customers.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to name
a few. Majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and regulations
in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply with
relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard.
The Group emphasizes on the relationship and communications with
the suppliers to promote sustainable development. The Group has
strict selection process on its suppliers taking into considerations
such elements as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality
and recall policy, market conditions and customers’ preference. The
Group will review and monitor the performance of the suppliers and
provide feedback to them from time to time.

Product Responsibility

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the
Group carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. The Group
will review the specifications of each product provided by the suppliers
before launching to our customers to ensure that each product
provided to customers are up to their standards and requirements.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

As a comprehensive distributor, we not only endeavour to provide high
quality products to our customers, but also wide range of value-added
services to our suppliers and customers. We provide product return
and exchange procedures for our customers and we will report and
provide feedback on any complaints about the quality of the products
to our suppliers for their further review and improvement.

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy of
every customer. All the employees are obligated to retain in confidence
any information obtained in connection with their employment, such
as client information and supplier information.

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of
intellectual property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to
sell its products, we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and
conditions on the sale of the products and a distributor agreement
will be signed by both parties to ensure that the Group has the right
and authority to sell the products on behalf of the suppliers.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout
its operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly tolerated.
The Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There
are anti-corruption and anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the
employees. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has a Compliance Department to monitor the compliance
issue and to ensure that all employees are aware of the importance
of integrity and honesty as the Group’s core value. The Group has
stringent Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our
business partners to follow strictly. There are two aspects in the
Group’s Code of Conduct. One is related to employees. All newly
joined employees are required to sign the Employee’s Handbook
and an Integrity Declaration and attend anti-corruption training. All
employees are also required to attend anti-corruption training every
year to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for our business
partners, such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to anti-
corruption are included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to
ensure both parties are fully aware of their responsibilities.
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Environmental Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels
for employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action.
All the information collected and received will be kept confidential and
the Group’s internal audit department will conduct internal investigation
and report to senior management.

Community Investment

As a corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting and engaging
in community and charitable activities in order to achieve a harmonious
and sustainable development between enterprise and the community.

The Group has great focus on education and development of young
people in supporting the community. In 2016, the Group worked
with Graduate School of Shenzhen Tsinghua University to set up a
technology and innovation research centre to support the technology
development in China. At the same time, the Group can attract
potential employees from students graduate from the research centre
to increase the competitiveness of the Group. The Group also made
donation to Tsinghua Alumni Association of Hong Kong and Tsinghua
University Education Foundation to support the long-term education
development in both Hong Kong and China.

In regard to our industry, the Group has made donation to Hong Kong
Information Technology Joint Council to support the latest technology
development and promote and foster support for Hong Kong as the
IT hub in the region.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of
its business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eleven members, consisting of six Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE (B)

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Ms. Chow Ying Chi
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau
Mr. Li Yue
(Appointed on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Yao Jie
(Appointed on 31 May 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li (Retired on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung

(Retired on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Hung Wai Man

(Appointed on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

(Appointed on 31 May 2016)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

30 VvSTHOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

ARREFGRETIES
HITES
FEWEE (T ERITBAR)
TRIFEE
PHEEL L+
B M 2k
FHEE
(R-T-ARFRA=T— ARE)
PRS2
(R=B-—ARERA=T—AEE)

EHITES

BlFZ (W —ZE—R"FRA=ZT—HEMT)

ZRAE

BYFHITES

TREE

EmEyLE

REELE
(RZEBE—RERA=+—HEMT)

HARELE
(R—ZZE—XRNFRA=1+t—"HEZT)

TEERELA
(R-ZZE—XRNEFEREA=+—"HEZMT)

EFERE(HBENDB)TRELTRUTE
RARRATEZABELEBAARKE -

REBEE_Z-—RF+_A=+—-HILFE
W EE2g " BENTALTRUNRAZERD =
EELFERTEZTVRARBEEFTTHE AR
El=pz— MEREL -RBIIIFNRT
EFAABEEEXERUSTHAENHE
EEERZEBBATE °

ARREEGEBIFATESTRELTR
Az REREBISOHAEL 2 FESHE
R ARARE RELTRAAEARE
NEHHZES  MEBYLERTEETIRE
SIAE e



The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of enhancing
Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving better
performance of the Company. In designing the board composition, board
diversity can be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional skills, industry experience and knowledge and length of service.
In considering these perspectives on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its business model and specific needs from
time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity Policy into
account in relation to the appointment of Mr. Li Yue and Mr. Yao Jie as
the Executive Directors and Mr. Hung Wai Man and Mr. Wang Xiaolong as
the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve better
performance of the Company.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE (B)

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:
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TtEERERE (B
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings
Directors BE=E HEEBITERRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMEE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William FEEE 4/4
Ms. Chow Ying Chi MELE A+ 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau R M ot A= 4/4
Mr. Li Yue (Appointed on 31 May 2016) FREE(R_E—R"FRA=T—HEZE) 2/2
Mr. Yao Jie (Appointed on 31 May 2016) ARG ERZE—R"ERA=T—REZME) 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Liu Li (Retired on 31 May 2016) RF (R "FREA=+—HEMT) 2/2
Mr. Liang Xin RN 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAHITES
Mr. Li Wei FIERE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi BERBEE 4/4
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung (Retired on 31 May 2016) RHEEAE(R=ZE—X"FRA=+—HEM) 2/2
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Appointed on 31 May 2016) #ARAE(R=_Z—"FRA=+—HEZT) 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Appointed on 31 May 2016) FEEFEEL (R - NFERA=+—HEZT) 2/2

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when necessary,
other committee meetings to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE (B)

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Ms. Chow
Ying Chi, Ms. Liu Li, Mr. Liang Xin, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
31 May 2016 due to other important engagements. All other directors had
attend the 2016 annual general meeting to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Liang Xin, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Lam Hin Chi will retire from
office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Board has recommended the
re-appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company’s circular contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each
Board committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information”
of this annual report.
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

(¢) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

(d) To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2016 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control systems
and the re-appointment of the external auditors.
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The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set
out below:

ERRKELEERZZESSRBARINNT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITEBRRE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) ERprE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei LA 2/2
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung (Retired on 31 May 2016) RAERE(RZZE—A"FRA=T+—RHEME) 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Appointed on 31 May 2016) #EAREA(R=-ZE—"FRAA=+—"HEZT) 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Appointed on 31 May 2016) TEELE(R-ZT—"FRA=+—HEZT) 1/1

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2016 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market
level of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed
to be made.
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TxE & (&)

The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive HEEE @B IEN BB IENTES - @5
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee KB EHMHEZE S S H 2 IBEREVAOT ¢
meeting is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITEBRRE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) FIEFE(LE) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBtE 11
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung (Retired on 31 May 2016) REHEEE(RZZE—R"FRA=T—RHEMR) 0/0
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Appointed on 31 May 2016) #tAREA(R=-Z—"FRA=+—HEZT) 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Appointed on 31 May 2016) FEgELEE(R_E—"FRAA=+—HEZT) 1/1

Nomination Committee REEE®

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the RHZE I ZRMEBHEFRIESE
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making 2 Z2&% ~ SRR ~ K K Z Tt - 3 3t E ) 5
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement FHZ EPmMEFSREEBEZZE - F£ AR
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified AR B Z X REAEHHA - W EAd

to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent ERAIZEEFEFEKREZ AL - FFRBILIF
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on HATEZEZHIIE - LR ESZEHEH
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning ZEREBEFEEFENESTFIRLEBRER -
for Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the %% B & 2 B #E & B 7] 14 /K 1 &) 4 ok I B
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. RETABILER] o

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31 @Z EZFT— T A=+ —BLLEE
December 2016 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and CIREEZRE é'ﬁ BIT—REHE  BRES

formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of @ ZHEK - BRUGITESRENEZEZE
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the BRF @ TEREEZZF - ARBILIEHR
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors. TEEZHBIE -
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:

RAZBRER RV TEFLETE LD
FEUIFNTESHEKE - @ERIKEHE
REZBEERZB/AHEIIWT ¢

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE S BITERRE

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) TEMSTE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Li Wei TRERE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi BB AE 1/1
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung (Retired on 31 May 2016) RABRE(RZE—X"FRA=+—RHEM) 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Appointed on 31 May 2016) HARGZE(R-_ZT—"FRA=Z+—HEZT) 0/0
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Appointed on 31 May 2016) TEREAE(R-_ZT— R FRA=+—HEZRT) 0/0

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the ’Independent
Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$7,346,000 and HK$1,125,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of
the Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.
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The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control framework,
covering all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The risk management and internal control framework also provides
for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.

Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.
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There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carried out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on
the Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERTE

The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of supply chain services, the distribution
of IT components and finished products and the provision of enterprise
systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 9 and pages
11 to 16 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
11 to 16 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social and Governance
Report are set out on pages 23 to 28 of the annual report. The Corporate
Governance Report are set out on pages 29 to 43 of the annual report.
In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial Summary
on page 160 of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2016 represented
approximately 9% (2015: approximately 12.7%) of the Group’s total
revenue, and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 25% (2015: approximately 27%) of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2016
represented approximately 18.5% (2015: approximately 23.6%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 63% (2015: approximately 71.3%) of the
Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 70.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 of approximately HK12.4 cents per ordinary share (2015:
approximately HK12.4 cents).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 72 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
which include share premium, capital reserve and retained earnings,
amounted to approximately HK$902,508,000 (2015: approximately
HK$608,482,000).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEgRE (&)

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased
952,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares
by the Company are as follows:

BrBRE

AR Z A ERRAD R B BB TR
ZEX  MASHERREA(RET)TESR
RAZ SN 2 PR EI -

EEMBHRE

AREBRBERAEVRFE 2 EEREENR
BEBMEHNEI160E -

BE LEIEEESF

RBE-F-AE+-A=+-ALEE
Py - A2 B 52 B B K A 952,000 B8
HER - BERHEREN - ARAR TS
B 2 3 BN -

No. of shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate

Month of repurchase repurchased per share (HK$) per share (HK$) price paid (HK$)

BRER G BRER G EEAER

BE A5 BERDEE ESE(ER) RIEE(ET) (B)

March 2016 200,000 1.66 1.64 330,000
—ZE-RE=A

April 2016 718,000 1.76 1.72 1,247,000
—E-RENA

August 2016 34,000 1.95 1.95 66,300
- FN\A

952,000 1,643,300

The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to an enhancement
of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per share.

Apart from the above, the Company also acquired, through a trust setup
specifically for purpose of employment compensation, a total of 34,318,000
ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2016 from the open market at a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$76,741,000. These shares would be used primarily for providing
employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition
of shares are recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Ms. Chow Ying Chi
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau
Mr. Li Yue
(Appointed on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Yao Jie
(Appointed on 31 May 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li (Retired on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung

(Retired on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man

(Appointed on 31 May 2016)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

(Appointed on 31 May 2016)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Li Jialin, Mr. Liang Xin, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Lam Hin Chi will retire by rotation
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2016 or at any time during the
year under review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out
on pages 17 to 22.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBERN EARRAREE&T
EEnA %R 14 HEROEE REAZBIEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 67,323,200 4.63%
FEMEE TR EmEAA

Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%

wE EanlEBA 0 BRI
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.96%

S~y corporation (Note 1)

RPUEEER (Btat1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.05%

wE Kk (Note 2)

(Biat2)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continueq)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

RARBDRGREERD 2B
(

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBR® EARAREET
L %R 13 HERCGEE REAZBAEIL
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 249,600 0.02%
TR EE R E=AA
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
R BEREAA DB
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
WEEL L R E=AA g E
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
BRIE N e A4 R BEnlEBA BN E
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 240,000 Share options 0.02%
FIERAE R E=AA 7 R AR
Notes: et -
1. 290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. N AR 2 290,340,000 B B L & L
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Limited# A @ Mz A6 22 HEEITRA
Ms. Liu Li. BEEMEERERBINZTHERE -
2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of 2. AR E)2204,309,6008% B% 19 B = EM T A&
Mr. Li Jialin. ZEBEFHLLHFE -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continueq)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2016, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:

RZE—RF+ZA=Z+—H8 BHEEFMH
HoUATALTRARA 2GR, 28 B R
R EEREZESF BB G EXVIEE2 M3
DR ZGEXARAR DR R TRE 2w
R/SRKE - RS HBRBARRAIREES
MK GPIEB6RFEZERM o BE R,
gKkE - RRRMERREATETMBER
TRASEEMEMKE AT ZRRAE £
BREZEMBERNRATEZIEEER@EE
5%k A £z S

Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
FEEZBREN BARE
EEpA BRE 513 HERDHE B
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 67,323,200 4.63%
FEMEE we EnlEEA

Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%

wE BaEBA 0 BB R
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.96%

IS~y corporation (Note 1)

REAE R (BeE1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.05%

Sy ENY (Note 2)

(Ktit2)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Directors’ Report (continued)
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FERK
o - 18 B8
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Number of

Approximate

Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BEEBERN AR
EEnA %R 514 HERDHE B
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.05%
BF %2+ R EmEAA
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.96%
e corporation (Note 1)
R EEE R (Btett)
Long Family interest 67,323,200 4.63%
R Kk (Note 3)
(B15£3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%
HaE EN i Ei (Note 4)
DB E
(Ktata)
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 290,340,000 19.96%
IS~y EnEAA (Note 5)
(Btsts)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.34%
wE BEnlEBA (Note 6)
(Hiit6)
YT A oo i A FE SRR (D Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.34%
BRAF] e corporation (Note 7)
R EEE R (Ktat7)
YRR E TR Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.34%
BRAT e corporation (Note 8)
R EE R (Kiat8)
mEBRERAT -2 545% 53



DWeckws’Repon(conﬁnued)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERRERHEMALIRE
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying 43 - $EE§ REREEZE
Shares and Debentures (ontinued) wmRRE =
Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BEEBERN AR
EEnA %R 514 HERDHE B
Mr. Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.34%
A 5 A S~y corporation (Note 8)
R EEE R (Kizts)
AR O SRTT Long Security interest in shares 252,211,998 17.34%
R B fn AR R 2R (Note 9)
(B15£9)
People’s Bank of China Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.34%
FRARRTT IS~ corporation (Note 9)
R AR R (K15£9)
Fidelity Long Investment manager 163,755,600 11.26%
e BB
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund Long Beneficial owner 120,000,000 8.25%
R EmEAA
Mutual Funds Elite Long Custodian corporation 76,174,400 5.24%
e FEERA
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued)

Notes:

1.

290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

67,323,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse
of Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin
and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by &3l

MR HERRDARAR.

36.72% of the shares of &kIITT 1A B EHE (D AR QA are held by J&YI|
MBI EERER AR,

100% of the shares of FIITT 18 TR BT EIEAZA R A 7] are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

The entire issued share capital of # Bl T} 08577 is held by People’s Bank
of China.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the K2 &l
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted
under the New Scheme. Further details of the New Scheme are set out in

note 14 to the financial statements.
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During the year under review, no share options have been lapsed or cancelled R EIEFER - BE T A ERERZEEE
under the Old Scheme. Details of the share options movement under the KXkt s - EFF S T EREZDHFB W
Old Scheme are as follows: Nk
As at As at Exercise

Name or category of Date of 1 January 31 December price per
participant offer 2016 2016 share (HK$) Exercise period

R=F—RF R-ZE—RF BRITHEE
SHEEHARER RFEH —A—HB +=A=+—8H (B7) TEH
Directors
B=x
Mr. Li Jialin 23/03/2011 1,800,000 1,800,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FEMEE
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William  23/03/2011 1,440,000 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FEFEE
Ms. Chow Ying Chi 17/02/2011 1,440,000 1,440,000 2.227 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
PEELZA
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 23/03/2011 1,440,000 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/20183-22/03/2021
BN o A
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 240,000 240,000 2.028 23/03/2013 -22/03/2021
FIEEE
Sub-total /J\ET: 6,360,000 6,360,000
Employees 17/02/2011 10,320,000 10,320,000 2.227  17/02/2013-16/02/2021
[=3=
Total 485t: 16,680,000 16,680,000
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEgRE (&)

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 30 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is
less than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements
were entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

15 3L % B B 3R =

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VST
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
68 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMEE(E)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 91.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted
to HK$3,708,290,000 (approximately 24.6% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2016.

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and their net
realisable value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and the future
expenses necessary to make the sales. Future demand and
selling prices of technology products are highly susceptible
to factors such as industry standards, technological changes
and customer preferences, which are constantly changing and
could change very rapidly.

Determining provisions for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because any write-down or provisions may have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements and because
the estimation of the net realisable values involves the exercise
of significant management judgement which can be inherently
uncertain.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls over the inventory write-down and
provision assessment process, including the Group’s
monitoring controls over slow-moving inventories;

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with relevant purchase records, including purchase
invoices and goods receipt notes;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity
sold subsequent to the reporting date and inspecting
inventory turnover rates during the current and previous
financial years; and

° assessing the historical accuracy of write-downs and
provisions for inventories at the end of the previous
financial year by examining movements in the balance
of provisions for inventories during the current year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

FEMGE

FLHGEAUBRERMTIIREIIENSTHER -
BREETEIE
He—_ZTZ—XF+-_A=+—H EBEEENGFESR

%
HEMBMEELMMAAIZME + #53,708,290,0008 T
(#y EEBRHEERN24.6%) °

FERBRARA B FEMRNENEREEIE -

EREEREEER
I (i 5HE R AT

CARREEARBERBERFTHR
FIFE o RHRE G RO R R KA

EERARELEXIZERSBEENEARTE @ HIE
FEE  MBREENEFEHSF -
EEEFEREGERN  EEEFFELHEAHNE  EARE5

FTEERENEREEATRENKAXKEE -

BPIEFEAEN ABREFEE - AAEAMEREE
FEHGEAVBRRERERTE - BARNMBEATERE
BESREEENERHE  MEXE A LT HEER

= o

Valuation of trade receivables
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Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 92.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s net trade receivables amounted to
HK$8,237,903,000 (approximately 54.7% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2016.

The Group’s customers operate in a number of geographical
locations with different credit profiles, such that the timing of
trade receivables’ settlement may be influenced by market/
geographical norms.

Management’s assessment of impairment of trade receivables
is based on a number of factors which include ageing of overdue
receivables, customers’ repayment histories, customers’
financial positions and market conditions. All of the above
factors may be inherently uncertain.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of trade receivables
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
Group’s key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and making impairment provisions for
doubtful debts;

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the relevant sales invoices;

° identifying significant or long overdue trade receivables
by inspecting the ageing reports and challenging
management’s assessment of those trade receivables’
recoverability, taking into consideration the ageing of
the balances, credit terms, recent settlement patterns,
identified default or disputes, the debtors’ financial
condition and recent communications with debtors;



Valuation of trade receivables (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMEE(E)

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 92.

The Key Audit Matter (continueq)

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the identification and measurement
of impairment of trade receivables involves significant
management judgement in assessing factors which can be
inherently uncertain and could be subjective thereby increasing
the risk of error or management bias.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit continued)

° comparing the cash received subsequent to the reporting
date for trade receivable balances as at 31 December
2016 with bank statements and other relevant underlying
documentation, on a sample basis; and

° evaluating the historical accuracy of provisions for
impairment of trade receivables made by management
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when making provisions for impairment
of trade receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (ontinueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Hui Chuen Hoi.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReEMBIKAE

As at 31 December 2016 A —Z—"F+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE—XREF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FHT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R REE 5 280,308 287,098
Goodwill 2 6 306,905 310,592
Interests in associates RERE R B ER 8 529,946 277,805
Interest in a joint venture REEDLENER 9 48,470 55,211
Deferred expenses EEFA 10 4,792 3,884
Deferred tax assets EEFIB & 2 17 66,689 62,074
1,237,110 996,664
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 R H b WA 10 9,367,625 8,564,014
Inventories 8 11 3,708,290 3,973,973
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 12 1,980,026 3,233,727
15,055,941 15,771,714
Total assets HEE 16,293,051 16,768,378
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 13 145,440 145,536
Reserves Gt 3,718,198 3,673,571
Total equity ARER 3,863,638 3,819,107
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e M BMR R (&)

As at 31 December 2016 R —Z—"F+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE—XREF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mzt FHBxT FHIT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income EIEUA 16 6,239 4,994
Borrowings BE 18 1,848,919 985,803
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 17 33,223 27,663
1,888,381 1,018,460
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFHIE 16 8,098,508 7,276,244
Borrowings (=9 18 2,396,122 4,635,211
Taxation payable FERIHIA 46,402 19,356
10,541,032 11,930,811
Total liabilities was 12,429,413 12,949,271
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEARE 16,293,051 16,768,378
Net current assets REBEERE 4,514,909 3,840,903
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 5,752,019 4,837,567

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March

2017.

Li Jialin
F{EM
Director

EF

Chow Ying Chi
gz
Director

EF

The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FERaR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BEE FHET FET
Revenue & 19 48,161,318 45,575,640
Cost of sales $HE A (46,304,580) (43,878,639)
Gross profit E7 1,856,738 1,697,001
Other gains/(losses), net HAaU A (F518) F88 20 8,906 (2,689)
Selling and distribution expenses HE KDY (731,582) (648,244)
Administrative expenses THAX (334,226) (368,999)
Operating profit 48 A 21 799,836 677,069
Finance costs WEER 22 (141,242) (139,738)
658,594 537,331
Share of associates’ profits DA E R T 36,108 34,686
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIEEEDEEE (5,927) (10,019)
Profit before taxation R B A i ) 688,775 561,998
Taxation HIE 23 (136,860) (111,617)
Profit for the year F % F) 551,915 450,381
Attributable to: BT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RRAIERFFEA 551,915 450,381
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FRREN (FRE)
- Basic —&K 26 38.27 cents 29.94 cents 1l
— Diluted —#E 38.17 cents i 29.89 cents 1l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders [EfTHEZS G AL B
Final dividend proposed FORRHAIRE 25 180,000 180,000

The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReREtEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2016 2015

—E-RF —ET-HF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAIT

Profit for the year F AR F 551,915 450,381
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FREMBEKA - BRI -

Exchange differences MEHZFE (248,649) (268,357)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALRE 303,266 182,024
Attributable to: BUR ARG

Equity shareholders of the Company RRAAIERFEEA 303,266 182,024
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALEE 303,266 182,024

The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these financial 7521598 2 M @R AR BRE 2 — &

aN

statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEREDER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

Equity
attributable to
Capital the Company’s Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital General  Translation Other ~ Deferred  Retained equity ~ controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings  shareholders interests Total equity
e FATEER FER
ks RBEE REOHE  EAEE  -RER  ERGE  BMEE  EERE  RERW  AARGER & o 3]
HKS'000  HKB000  HKS'000  HKE000  HKS'000  HK$O00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T Tk FhL FERL FERL TR TR TR TR T T i
Note () Note i) Note (i) Note (iv) Note (1) Note () Note (vi
Wit / Wity ity iy i) Hit)
Balance as at 1 January 2015 R-5-1%
—R-Bu&8 152,519 832,991 109 19,151 59,863 108,514 (99,152) — 2880730 3,954,725 38233 3992958
Profit for the year ERgd - - - - - - - = 450,381 450,381 — 450,381
Other comprehensive income E2ENA - - - - — (268357 - - - (268,357) — (268357
Total comprehensive income ER2EHALE
for the year - - - - - (268,357) - - 450,381 182,024 - 182,024
Dividend paid Bfika - - - - - - - —  (180,001) 180,001) - (180001)
Acquisition of addtional interest in 3Rk
a subsidiary from non-controling )
interest - - - - - - 14913 - - 1913 (8289 (23320
Share options exercised 24 791 - (281) - - - - - 534 - 534
Shares repurchased
— Par value (7,007) - - - - - - - - (7,007) - (7,007)
— Premium paid - - - - - - - - (146,081) (146,081) - (146,081)
— Transfer between reserves - - 7,007 - - - - - (7,007) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2015
145,536 833,782 7,116 18,870 59,863 (159,843 (84,239) — 299,022 3,819,107 — 3819107
Representing: K&:
Share capital R 145,536
Reserves GE 3,493,571
Proposed dividend BERE 180,000
3,819,107
Balance as at 1 January 2016 RZF-~E
-F-Bz&8 145,536 833,782 7,116 18,870 59,863 (159,843) (84,239) - 2,998,022 3,819,107 - 3819107
Profit for the year Emar = = = = = - - - 551,915 551,915 - 551,915
Other comprehensive income Et2ENA - - - - - (48649) - - - (248,649) - (48649)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALE
for the year - - - - - (248,649) - - 551,915 303,266 - 303,266
Divicend paid BfiRE = = - - - - - - (180,350) (180,350) - (180,350)
Transfer of reserve s - - - - 63,197 - - - (63,197) - - -
Deferred shares ik - - - - - - - (76,741) - (76,741) - (76,741)
Shares repurchased BEERR
— Par value (96) - - - - - - - - (96) - (96)
— Premium paid - - - - - - - - (1,548) (1,548) - (1,548)
— Transfer between reserves - - 96 - - - - - (96) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 W=F—7%F
TZA=t+-RzEH 145,440 833,782 7212 18,870 123,060 (408,492) (84,239) (76,741) 3,304,746 3,863,638 - 3,863,638
Representing: ft%:
Share capital e 145,440
Reserves G 3,538,198
Proposed dividend ke 180,000
3,863,638

The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes:

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(i)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

RERmZB|R(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that
of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation
in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium
arising from the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies
Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and
the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of
their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the statutory
surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose
of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after
taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting standards. The
amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before profit distribution
to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant regulations, this reserve may
be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase the registered capital
of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and
the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note
2.2(a)).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s shares
through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment compensation.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.12.

Wit -

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FElaRE®RR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE ZZ—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt eE FEx FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEYHEeRE
Net cash generated from operations KEMBREFE 28 1,247,855 669,977
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) REL (B2
EEANER 27,286 (89,371)
Overseas tax paid B8N TE (134,642) (108,379)
Net cash generated from K EBIFTE
operating activities REFRE 1,140,499 522227
Cash flows from investing activities REFZDHHERE
Interest received BUFIB 11,092 14,120
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WEREE
equipment (175,551) (77,220)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEX
plant and equipment BB FE 4,154 456
Investment in assoicates REEE R BRI E (237,235) —
Dividends received from associates KRB & A RIS, 8,003 32,689
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFTRR S F58 (389,537) (29,955)
Cash flows from financing activities RETB ESRE
Payment for the repurchase of shares BERIRM R (1,644) (153,088)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TT{E B AR P15 E — 534
Changes in non-controlling interests KEBERIBARZ
arising from an increase in the Group’s RS NPT EE AE Y
shareholding in subsidiaries FEVE R e - (23,320)
New bank borrowings ERITEE 9,785,709 11,851,482
Repayment of bank borrowings EEEBITEE (11,161,194) (9,818,914)
Payment for deferred shares BRI 13X (76,741) —
Interest paid BERFE (141,242 (139,738)
Dividend paid EATIRE (180,350) (180,001)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from MEES (A FTE
financing activities BEFE (1,775,462) 1,636,955
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReMReEED
cash equivalents (Rd) /HEhnFEEE (1,024,500) 2,029,227
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—RAZHEEK
ReEEBY 3,233,727 1,495,111
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREH s FE (229,201) (290,611)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTZR=+—BzH&Kk
ReEBY 12 1,980,026 3,233,727

The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M 5 30 = P &

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the supply chain business,
the IT components business and finished products business and the
provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd Floor,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March
2017.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(*HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

—REH

BEZEBRBERARM(TARA]) REWME
RE (MBI AEE ) 2ETBXBH/HE
BEB  BAMREGEBERRRER
REEOERRREA RS -

ARRAERSHEEAMRIZERA
Al EX B e MB AR B THETD
2005 LB B AES33E3312

=
=
= °

ARARBOREBHRERZABER AR
(TBEX P ) ERET ©

BRBERHAN  ABBHRERERATET
(TET)ZRY - AUBRERER -F—
TtE=ZA T - HESEFSIMETIE -

TESHBERE

BEXAMBHRREAZIZEHARESR
FIEAR o BRIFEZBHRAS - RE AT RB
EFEHERREBZSTERIEE -

2.1 RBIEAE

AHBHRRDVBEMBERER
MBHREENRE  BREEES
AEAGEMZAAENERZ
BAEMBHRSESERN  BEEIHE
AkZ2E FERARAGFRAIR
BERAGHIZHWERE - A8
BRENTTABIMESFLTR
AERZEERTE -

HE-_Z—-—R"F+=-A=+—8H
TEENRAVBREBEAE
ErAEERBLATARE—BE
BOERRERS -

EBHBRERAT -—T-A&4% 19



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHTHRBE w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 2.1 B EE &)

76 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that other financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have effect on the financial statements and sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHTHRBE w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 21 REEE (#)
The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs BEEedMAeHEENBHRE
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the ERABEEME TR ASEZE
Group. AT E R ERZIEE -
Of these, the following amendments are relevant to the Group: HpToETmAEEEHA
. Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial . EBSIENEIR  F

statements: Disclosure initiative HEZZ5 - HEEFZ
e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle . ey ﬁf/f EEARZF—
—FEFE — P9 F R 2 F
E&@

None of these developments have had a material effect on ZEZHHUAEERERNXBA
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current MMz & LB /RZ iR B o
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group ENFABEERTE - A& E
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not WEEATEHRE N SETHE N
yet effective for the current accounting period. RERZFHER S ZRE -

BHBRERAT - a5 11



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(@

78 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with note 2.8 depending on the nature of
the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.2(b)).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(@

80 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@

82 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets are included in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continuea)

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(if) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations
and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in equity are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHTHRBE w0

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 2.4 M¥ BERRZHE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated ME - BERZEBEHEKARZR
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure AITERBEEEIER - KAB
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. FWHEBEEEEERGE 2R -

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or EEMEIBERA@ 2 RREBE WA
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is e RmANEE - Hegrl il

ERBRZHKAR  HEBHER
ZRAFAEEZ REAERERR
—IHBVEE(NER) - B HEM
mERREER BREELZ
MHAEA > RESERAZHE -

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

ME BMERRXREBRBWNINTE
REENAERABLEER

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEEFEE

Buildings held for own use carried at cost
BRARFIEZ FHEEAET
Furniture and fixtures
REAREE

Office equipment
MNERME

Computers

E

Motor vehicles

e

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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2.6

BEZEBRERLF

2. FESTHREBRE 2

ME - BERSKE@

& EREESNE MG AT RE
KRB MEEREENEHBRE
HalmEmeE(RME2.7) -

BEILEVNE BELERRHBERE
BzARBHEBNLMEREAR
RHEEETE  ANHEXLEA
HIFF ABERA -

KEEEE

EREERERTRERENY
X BELERRHE BERAME
EREBE(WE)NKR(EM
H2.7) KMABREBFHEEK
K-BERESFROKA - KRR
BEIREKLAABEARZSE
EERMEMEANEEMELN
MEXH REBEERT IA
EREMZA TE8REREE
EMERE ERMEERARE
A RABERENE BE
NHMBEE - AR EXHE2.450
ABRFHRITE -

G
EMERRUTHESE

(i) FBEARKENAIFE  EF
FE 4% BCH 21 PTG R UE 77 B9
& 8 R AN B I AR 1R U
THHANERNRFEZ
A BB

(i) R B AT R
A AEE R ENFD
T -

)RR ()E - thBHZERIZA

FE R38R TR A B BB 3

—z—~55% 85



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

86 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Goodwill continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, a joint venture and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not available
for use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“cash generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

associates, a joint venture and non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting”
in respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments

(@

88 vsTHOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for assets with maturities greater than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(@

Financial assets (continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are subsequently recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses.

Dividend income or interest income from debt and equity
securities is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2.20.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset.

For debt and equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

90 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives
are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the
host contract and the embedded derivates are not closely
related, a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative, and the combined instrument is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value. When a derivative financial instrument is held
for trading, and is not designated in a qualifying hedge-
relationship, all changes in its fair value are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
Group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TEEHEHRBE »)

(continued)

2.9 Inventories 2.9 78

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TEEHEHRBE »)

(continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables 210 EG R EME W FIE

92 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect
of discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TEEHEHRBE »)

(continued)
2.12 Share capital 212 B
Ordinary shares % M AL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are presented as a deduction from total
equity.

Deferred reserve

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of the
Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation. The reserve is credited to the
extent of the fair value of shares on granting to awardees.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
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subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective BER  EENEERRM R LIRS
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be HAK AR E - B 3E MIREETD
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. A BHRRARAIER ©

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings 214 sTEEE

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TEEHEHRBE »)

(continued)

2.15 Income tax 215 FT 5%

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
assets are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.15 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of the reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(@)  Pension obligations
The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

(@

96 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Pension obligations (continuea)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement
of financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TEEHEHRBE »)

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea) 216 EERA (&)

(d)  Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(d) BXfn (&)

REBHA  EHESEE
ZEBEREBEESTEN - L
HBEFECHEABZ AR
FEMEL ZERMEERE
AHE/FABEHFEZR
HEAR  AEHERFEE
HAAEREE  HEAERER
REEZRBREEFAXAIR
She REEBHE  EHER
RAXZABSELHE
MR BR B 57 B 2 B A A R
B TeSEAREEDE
EFE  HRERGEENS
AR B R mIE 5B K
M2 Uz 155 RUBR S -
GHBEEEARBERER
B2 B N 1T (0 B
= R it 18 B 3K I R B 1
FREZERERERANA
ke

217 BMERHARERE

EALEESAARARFEBETEMHE
BERSETEEME METHER
BEEAUEFTFELENaRL @ X
AEUER T ENGRR > g
HRERERITEENABER
BiE o -MEBSHEBEAN B
BHZESHBRITEEMARNXY
BEINE -

MAKRATEEZFREEMER L
REAASER[AEBAESE - A
BEDNDBEERIABE  BRIEL
N &R RO AT REME AR OR o T BE
AENEE(HFAERERET
E-—ARZERREMFER) TR
BRUARARE  BRIFQCEMNSER
HE AT BE MR GR

Z
&K

EuRRERAT -~ e 97



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR B B

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an

evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TEEHEHRBE »)

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued) 218 HE (#)

(b)  Finance leases (continued) (b) mi‘iﬁﬁﬁ &)
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability Tﬁ%miﬁﬁé\ﬁﬁ)}%ﬂﬁ
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate fi HEAER - UWEKREEZ

on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments
is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
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to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the BRI - DAE X B R
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The BEMREEEREE T A
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance o REMEBEEWENY
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life ¥ HBEREZEBEBREEE
of the asset and the lease term. Impairment losses are AFEBEBPNEREERNG

accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2.7.
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2.19 Segment reporting 219 D PR &
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item KEDBERTBEREANZHED
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the ENHEELBEHNEETHEHT
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most AEERSTRERAR - UY

senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit

U)

(i)

(i)

or loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the products
and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

Project revenue

Revenue on projects is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss based on the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the percentage of
contract costs incurred to date to estimated total contract
costs for the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.22 Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Related parties (continuea)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(v)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (‘US$”), the Singapore
Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah
(“RP”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with a net notional amount
of approximately HK$255,265,000 (2015: approximately
HK$387,509,000).

A 5% strengthening of the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities against the
HK$ at 31 December 2016 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the Group by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis as
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@
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Foreign exchange risk (continued) (a) SMERBR (&)

Group

REHE
2016 2015
— NI —E—T4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
RVMB AR 24,153 37,302
uss$ ETT (55,104) (75,679)
S$ N T 6,386 8,070
THB Zik 22,418 17,678
RP EEE 19,061 7,406

A 5% weakening of the above currencies against the
HK$ would have had the equal but opposite effect on
the above currencies, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details
of which have been disclosed in note 12. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in note 18. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2016, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$35,572,000 (2015:
HK$47,284,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(©)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The exposures to these credit risks are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis by established credit
policies and procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade receivables falls within
the recorded allowances.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

BHEEBREERLQTE

(%)

3.1 I EREZE#)

(d)  Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RENMERRR(EZ)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EEEREHARE S RE X E
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and cash ERAKREFBRHELERBE(B
and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash ERIEDRREULERE S LB
flows. The table below analyses the Group’s financial SEZEEY NEFEERER - T
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the ETNERREHBEALHT
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual AN THEIEAR
maturity date. R AN AEEGT K E

& -
Lessthan1 Between1and Between 2 and
Total year 2 years Syears  After 5 years
&it R —EERE MEERE BBRLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T AR AR
Group pin- 1|
At 31 December 2016 R-B-XE+t-A=1-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,382,081 2,427,648 9,560 1,935,981 8,802
Adjustments to cash flow based on  RIEE T EREFIEF |4
lender’s right to demand repayment B4 A EIEH R = 46,463 (9,560) (28,011) (8,892)
4,382,081 2474111 - 1,907,970 -
Finance lease liabilities HEMERR 1,206 482 423 301 =
Trade and other payables ZHREENTE 8,098,508 8,098,508 = = =
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-Bf+-F=1+-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,749,187 4,682,387 67,941 981,019 17,840
Adjustments to cash flow based on ~ RIEEF ESEFERE
lender’s right to demand repayment ~ B&EE(FHER - 56,203 (9,591) (28,772) (17,840)
5,749,187 4,738,590 58,350 952,247 -
Finance lease liabilties HEREEE 870 345 254 271 -
Trade and other payables ZHRAENTE 7,076,244 7,276,244 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MK¥XERBEERATHE

(continued) (#&)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXRRAKERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is
calculated as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

AEBERERAZBNRERAE
SHEHERNFHELE  URAKRE
}%f#@#&&%/ﬁ\@?ﬂ EREAN

'&f’&?—iﬁaﬁiﬁﬁ 1 DARK

REFIHABELRARB K&
EXEgRAERNTRENRE S
B MBRRBEEER  BITHR

AEBMEEHFRE AL EE
RER o Z L RREEFHELR LA
MiEDE  EBFRRERGE
(BIEHE BRI EKT AR E
RIERBEE)REEERESEE
MEE - HRRESPBRAX
FmEtE -

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2016:

TERAIMAEBER T —RF+
“A=t+— EIE’JéZK 3L

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-R4E

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHT

Total borrowings (Note 18) BB (MiF18) 4,245,041 5,621,014
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B R RS EEY

(Note 12) (KtzE12) (1,980,026) (3,233,727)

Net debt B8 2,265,015 2,387,287

Total equity B 3,863,638 3,819,107

Net debt/equity ratio ERFRE X 0.59 0.63

muppERas -~z a4 107



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

() Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 183 “Fair value measurement”. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data is not available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MK¥XERBEERATHE

(continued) (#&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq) 3.3 ANEEMETE)
()  Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) (i) NAFETEzZE2R8T
B (#)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—EBHR FE-EBHR F=BH &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAIT FAIT FAIT FAIT

At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRF

+=A=+—-~
Assets 5=
Derivative assets PTHEEE - 4,256 - 4,256
Forward foreign exchange contracts EAIINES 4 — 44,780 — 44,780
Listed securities EES 138,697 - — 138,697
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AF

+=—A=+—H
Assets &=
Derivative assets PTHEBE - 1,603 - 1,603
Liabilities afE
Forward foreign exchange contracts EAIINES K - 7,780 - 7,780

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, REE_ZT—A"FER_F ﬁi
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value +ZA=+—BLFER AF
hierarchy. BER 2 HIWEETEMERE -
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in F_EREIESONRATFE
Level 2 is determined by discounting the contractual | Hz BRERERERITFEE
forward price and deducting the current spot rate. The AMIEEERET - MEAME
discount rate used is derived from the relevant government KRR EARDG A B BT EX
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an B SNEHANBETEESZ
adequate constant credit spread. (S
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

4.

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i)~ Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@

Estimated write-down of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs of inventories are recorded to the extent where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables.
Provisions are applied to trade receivables to the extent where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in
the period in which such estimates are changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continuea)

(©)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective
and judgements are based on the Group’s experience and
knowledge of operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in business and
economic conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings
held for own
Leasehold use carried Furniture and Office Motor  Assets under
improvements at cost fixtures equipment Computers vehicles  construction Total
HE  ZRAIEN %E
WEEE KFEREF REE  BOERE B AE HREE M@zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR TET FiET TAR TET FAR FET FiET
As at 1 January 2015 R=F-HF—F-H
Cost B 27,839 70,226 18,206 10,846 40,800 8,886 1,691 178,494
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (15,727) (8,324) (6,685) (7,897) (17,513) (4,736) — (60,882)
Net book amount BEFE 12,112 61,902 11,521 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE-Z—R%F
+ZA=t-BILEE
Opening net book amount FUEEEE 12,112 61,902 11,621 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
Additions HE 4,645 179,449 269 1,659 11,652 1,918 2,228 201,720
Transfer 4 — — 2,420 186 — — (2,606) —
Disposals HE - — (276) ) (231) — (350) (862)
Depreciation e (4,576) (4,635) (2,850) (1,427) (7,935) (946) - (22,369)
Exchange difference EREE (650) (132) (953) (194) (6,702) (257) (115) (9,003)
Closing net book amount FAEEFE 11,631 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098
As at 31 December 2015and ~ R-Z—H%
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-Bk
Y =
Cost B 30,657 249,280 16,027 11,466 37,868 9,991 848 356,137
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (19,126) (12,696) (5,896) (8,398) (17,797) (5,126) = (69,039)
Net book amount FmFE 11,531 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098
Year ended 31 December 2016 EZE - Z—14
TZA=t—HILEE
Opening net book amount FUEEFE 11,531 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098
Additions HE 9,465 - 1,457 852 8,267 1,079 1,708 22,828
Transfer R - - 1,365 - 315 - (1,680) -
Disposals HE (267) - (2,849) (230) (382) (472) - (4,200)
Depreciation wE (3,789) (5,026) (2,683) (1,230) (7,846) (1,095) - (21,669)
Exchange difference EREE (3,885) (144) 99 (25) (566) 812 (40) (3,749)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308
As at 31 December 2016 RIT—~F
+ZA=+-8
Cost A 35,753 249,027 13,137 11,019 39,386 10,772 836 359,930
Accumulated depreciation ZEtHE 22,698 17,613 5,617 8,584 19,527 5,583 - 79,622
Net book amount BEFE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308

The net book value of property, plant and equipment under
finance leases as at 31 December 2016 was HK$1,447,000 (2015:

HK$1,258,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

Goodwill 6. B8
2016 2015
—ZT—RF —ZT—RHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Goodwill [EES 306,905 310,592
As at 1 January Kn—H—H 310,592 324,001
Exchange difference PE N Z=%E (3,687) (13,409)
As at 31 December w+—-A=+—H 306,905 310,592

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs”) to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis
of assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections range from 4.9% to 10% (2015: 6.2% to
10%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rates as at 31 December 2016 which range
from 5.9% to 12.4% (2015: 7.6% to 16.5%) were applied in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount
rates used reflect the risk-free rates and the premiums for
specific risks relating to the business units to which the CGUs
relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount
of goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RMBARZRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are RZE—RF+A=+—8H2
as follows: FEMBARZFFIBHOT ¢

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
i) A BRITRAR FEEEEDT
18 FX 3L 3 B TEEBRKE LR AMERFE HiE B
(Hisz)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
VST Group Limited EBREAHS ®REER - A FREEIET
RERELHS 2 &k
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. products in the PRC
RINETLREET H NG R AR#100,000,0007T
BRAF R E R
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited products in
Hong Kong
BLSK(EE) e REEDIHER M E A
BRAF] R E m

62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

62,000,000/
BIRERERERSR

Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT US$20,000,000 — 100%
Technology Development products in the PRC
Co., Ltd

BREHAZEARK # RABE D IHER 20,000,0003 7T
BEREBR DA M Em

ARECERNEEERAF PRC Project Investment RMB30,000,000 — 100%

in the PRC
FERECERRRAERAR  RE KPR EBEERE AR #30,000,0007T
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =% —

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are

as follows: (continued)

P 7% R R B R (4R

RETZRA=+—HIEHFE

7. RMB AR Z2RE w0

RZB-—RF+_A=+T—HBZXEW
BRAZHBWT  (#)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRAR FsERE I
HHE FX L3t 2 TEXBREEBE HMEARFE HiE Lk
(Hiat)
R ER LD R R PRC Project holding RMB2,500,000 — 100%
BRAT] in the PRC
RN T ERE R i NSSIETEE R el AR ¥2,500,0007T — 100%
BIRAR]
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding 446,036,800 ordinary 100% —
and distribution of IT shares
products, provision
of IT services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
EARRBRAT g R IRIEFRE 446,036,8005%
PERE - DA RRHR gl
Em - REERH
AR5 B b2k R4
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred shares, — 99.90%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd in Thailand non-accumulative
dividend, Baht 1.25
per share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings RE RREREREER 196,000/ &R EE1.25%

(Thailand) Co., Ltd

@R REIERE

K:204,0000¢ F AR EE1.25

Tk BB

BEZEBRERLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & =& —

7. Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

RETZA=+—BILHFE

(continued)

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMB AR Z2KRE )

RZB-—RF+_A=+T—HZXEW
BRAZHBWOT  (#)

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRA FEERBSE
18 BR AL ith 26 FTEEBREE M M ERFE HiE SE2
(M)
VST ECS (Thailand) Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares of — 100%
Co., Ltd technology products 10 Baht each
and services for
IT infrastructure
in Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) RE REIEMBEER R 7,783,0000%
Co., Ltd BB R BREE10RS
AR % e pdi &)
ECS Value Myanmar Myanmar Provision of marketing 300,000 shares of — 100%
Services Company research and IT services US$1 each
Limited in Myanmar
ECS Value Myanmar i) RETmRESHER 300,000 8KEEIETL
Services Company K& MEHE AR B 15
Limited
ECS Value (Cambodia) Cambodia Import and export of IT KHR20,000,000 — 100%
Co., Ltd. products in Cambodia
ECS Value (Cambodia) Sl RRIBEEFEMEHLE 20,000,000k # % i B
Co., Ltd. miEH A
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of information 13,600,000 ordinary — 100%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd technology products shares of S$1 each
and services for
IT infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Computers rhns N EARRERR 13,600,000/ & i I 1E

(Asia) Pte. Ltd
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Notes to the Financial

Statements (continued)

P 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMB AR Z2RE w0

RZB-—RF+_A=+T—HBZXEW

BARBRZFBWET

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

()

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRE FEERBSE
HE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBREE M HEMERFE HiE SE2
(M)
Pacific City (Asia Pacific)  Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Pte Ltd technology products, of S$1 each
IT equipment and
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) ¥ hl# PRI i B AR 150,000k G AR E (&
Pte Ltd Em - BARHHRE VHT K T 2 Ak
RigHZEE
ECS Enterprise Solutions  Singapore Distribution of 5,000,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Pte Ltd Information technology of S$1 each
products and services
for IT infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Enterprise Solutions 1Al PRI 5 86 B R 5,000,0008%
Pte Ltd EmRNEEMRBE GREE1FNHET
B R IEARTS 2 BRI
ECS Technology (China)  Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited provider of information
technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EAREHR (P E) 8 wERZR  FBEA 11,500,000 A& @A
BRDA] RHREE i ] B FRLEHR
B RG HER
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 — 100%
(Guangzhou) technology products
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
BMERRHEARLDF i BB ERHR Em X 10,000,000 7T
BB R i
AR (e

BEZEBRERLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BB mRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries (continveq) 7. RMBARZRE =
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are RZE—ARF+ZA=+—HZEZEMW
as follows: (continued) BARZFBEWT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRAR FsgEEE It
HHE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBRKE I SMERFE HiE SFE2
(Hiat)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 — 100%
Company Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
BN ERBE R # BB R Em X 1,282,000% 7T
BRDA] BB R
AR % e
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 — 100%
Management Co., Ltd technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
FE(LE)ER # BB R Em K 25,000,000% 7T
BIRAR] BB R
AR % e
ECS China Technology PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 — 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
EARHR(L8) H HEIERHRER R 15,000,0003 7T
BIRAR] BB AR R
BRA Gt ET
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of information 10 ordinary shares — 100%
Co., Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
BBEARR BB BERBEARHRER R 10[% & AR
BRAT BERHE AR
R 754t FE 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are

as follows: (continued)

7. RMiB AR Z2RE =)

RZE-—RF+_A=T—HZXEW

BRRZFBHOT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRAR FsgEEE It
HHE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBRKE I SMERFE HiE SFE2
(Hiat)
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of information 2,000,000 and 24,785 — 100%
technology products ordinary shares
in Singapore of S$1 and
US$1.8156 each
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd N N A SRR 2,000,000 24, 785[%
S HHE Gk RIEE M T
K1.81563K T i@ A%
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary shares — 100%
technology products of US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya ENfe ENfe & s RHR & m 100,000k A E{E 1T
S HHE 2 B
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of — 100%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore S$1 each
ECS Infocom (Phils) NI IR R E TR 2N% & AR TE (B 1T N3 7T
Pte. Ltd 2 EER
ECS Chongaing PRC Electronic settlement US$70,000,000 — 100%
Marketing & payment business centre and
Co., Ltd provider of information
technology products
and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
HEEREUEHEE & PEEFEERHKT L 70,000,000% 7T
BIRAF] NEMBRERK
BB AR
Rt FE 7

Note:

Wit -

BRPEKZOMBEAR RIIEEE X
Sy - REMBARIREREERR -

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in
the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

. . Qe — N2
8. Interests in Associates 8. REt&E AT R
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted LT
Share of net assets PMEFEE 310,904 65,038
Loan to an associate BlESNCTN= E 3,489 3,484
314,393 68,522
Listed outside Hong Kong BEHUIMEE LT
Share of net assets DFEE 215,553 209,283
529,946 277,805
Market value of listed shares ETRGTE 178,744 207,230

The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured,
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year.
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Interests in Associates (continueq)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

8. REEERNTNRER »

RoB—AE+-A=+—AMBEL
AR :

Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by the
Name incorporation Principal activities  shares held Group
H8 MR ZER FTEEH e RITRGFHE rEBFfBZRE
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—AF
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc Philippines Distribution of IT 3,097,055 49.99% 49.99%
products ordinary shares of
Peso 100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc JEEE 2B ARHRE M 3,097,0550%
FREE100HER
2 BB
ECS ICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of 180,000,000 1% 41%
information ordinary shares of
technology and RMO.5 each
services for IT
infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECS ICT Berhad P il BERATEFREE 180,000,000/%
HERRRHEARmEk SREECSSHE
AR 7% 2 B
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand [T service 196,000 shares of 49% -
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. el BB iR 196,000/%
BRREE100% %
pdi &)
APAL Holdings Limited Cayman lIslands Aviation leasing 300,000,000 25.95% -
ordinary shares of
US$0.1 each
APALIZRR B R AF] HESHS RgiHE 300,000,0008%
FREECIZET
ZE B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

. . Qe — a2z n
8. Interests in Associates (continueq) 8. REEE NN ESR =)
None of the associates were considered individually material to the MaEsE AR ERNmERREABEHAE
Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the consolidated BEKX ZEHREVFEmERPAEAEE
financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate financial information RAZBREEHERLEXER - A&EHS
(the Group’s share) of these associates is as follows: MZEHERACBHBERDT ¢
2016 2015
ZEB-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Profit from continuing operations FELL & T 36,108 34,686
Other comprehensive income Hin2mBA (13,199) (46,992)
Total comprehensive income SHER AL 22,909 (12,306)
PP T 3¢
. . N AY
9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REERRNES
2016 2015
ZEB-RF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Share of net assets DMEFEE 48,470 55,211
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: RZE—RF+_A=+—"HBHHEED

EHBOT

Particulars of

Country of registered and Equity interest
Name establishment  Principal activities paid-in capital held by the Group
L SAVAETES TEEK EMREHERFE FEBTEZRE
2016 2015
—B-R"f ZT-0%F
Bozhou Botong Information PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of

smartphones and computer
peripheral product

2MTHIEBES FE e - EENRHESE AR #155,000,0007C
MEBERAR FHREZEKEEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

. . A s A e 3¢
Interest in a Joint Venture continued) 9. REELENER w0
Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint SMNHIEBREERIERATALAEHR
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered SHEBNE ——BAELE  LTH
material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of BRHAEERBEKR - AEEHEZE
this joint venture is as follows: EhEZHBERDT ¢
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaBx FIT
Loss from continuing operations RBC 2 EE (5,927) (13,676)
Gain on deemed disposal RIELER IS = 3,657
Other comprehensive income Hb 2 EIA (815) (2,159)
Total comprehensive income EBALLEE (6,742) (12,174)
. Trade and Other Receivables 10.EZ R HMEWRIA
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix FAT
Trade receivables, net & 5 RN F R 8,237,903 7,702,999
Other receivables and prepayments H At FEUGRIE R FB A FRIR 1,123,639 855,104
Deferred expenses (Note 16 (d)) BIEF X (M et 16(d)) 10,875 9,795
9,372,417 8,567,898
Less: Non-current deferred expenses R FEBNERIERE R S,
(Note 16 (d)) (KizF16(d)) (4,792) (3,884)
9,367,625 8,564,014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & =& —

RETZA=+—BILHFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date

10.ESZREMEWFIE @

AEBGRTE=ZTEPZ2EEHRNTT
E150R @ MEEEP ZEEMA FIE
E RIRFEREHRZRXZFERNRK
REME - EZEUPRIBFBERESR

is as follows: HEI S MERER D AT T ¢
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—FHF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHBT
0 — 30 days 0230H 4,206,581 4,075,671
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,530,711 2,098,333
61 — 90 days 61290H 731,820 675,494
Over 90 days B39O0 H 768,791 853,501
8,237,903 7,702,999

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$1,607,675,000
(2015: HK$1,765,791,000), which were fully performing, were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of

these trade receivables by due date is as follows:

RNZE—XRF+_A=+—H 22
BITHE 5 EURFIE1,607,675,00078
T(ZZE—HF :1,765,791,000/8 L)
EEBERRE ZEREHRZHE L
XPBEH  BFEUELHENDE - %
SHEHRWFBRINBAESNERD

WanT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-nfF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FH AT

0 - 30 days 0&30H 1,220,506 1,090,855
31 - 60 days 31£260H 184,977 265,787
61 - 90 days 61290H 61,976 121,090
Over 90 days HiB90H 140,216 288,059
1,607,675 1,765,791
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10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$288,425,000 (2015:
HK$254,184,000) were impaired and full provision has been made.
The ageing analysis of these receivables by invoice date is as follows:

10.ESZREMEWFIE @

W-EBE—-—XRFE+-_A=+—0H ZHE
W k18288,425,0008 T (ZE— R F
254,184,000/ L) B RE © WEEH
TERE  ZEREBKBEREEAHE
DHERER DT ¢

2016 2015

—E-REF —ZT—FHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

61 - 90 days 61290H 6,399 -
Over 90 days #BiBo0H 282,026 254,184
288,425 254,184

Movements of the provision for trade receivables are as follows:

BEHREFRBRENESHNT

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHEx FHET

At 1 January ®—A—H 254,184 220,913
Net provision and receivable written off B e Wi 8 R 45,149 46,504
Exchange difference E =% (10,908) (13,233)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 288,425 254,184

All of the above provision relates to trade receivables that were

individually determined to be impaired.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information

about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties have not

had significant defaults in the past.

PG Lt B 4 15 BRI ) 7 5 % 15 L ERUR
ENEHEKFIERTH -

BB SOBENE S K HE b E R RIER
FEERDNZ2EXSHRIBEEDNE
BRI - RAXZERBAEALESER
ER o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated
in the following currencies:

10.ESZREMEWFIE @

5 % o L L DA T 31
s -

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —F—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FETT

HK$ BT 16,822 27,088
RMB AR 6,821,551 5,766,198
uss$ E 912,978 1,250,078
S$ st 346,630 441,346
THB Zetk 777,626 659,725
RP ENEE 492,018 419,579
9,367,625 8,564,014

As at 31 December 2016, included in other receivables and R-ZEBE—XNEFE+=—_A=+—8 " st AH

prepayments was an amount of HK$43,519,000 (2015: HK$71,851,000)
representing investments in unlisted equity interests which are carried
at cost and investments in listed securities of HK$138,697,000 (2015:
HK$11,578,000) which are carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Included in other receivables is an amount of HK$4,256,000 (2015:
HK$1,603,000), which related to derivative assets.

Included in prepayments of the Group is an amount of HK$152,723,000
which related to property acquisition in the PRC.

h JE Ui 5118 I B 1 3R IE 3£ 43,519,000%8
T(ZZ—FHF 71,851,000 7T) * #5
RRASIRRIE ETTRAERE RIEAFE
FIAE RSN ETEHEE 138,697,000
BT (ZZE—F4F :11,578,00087C) °

ETEEEMBMNSE4,256,0008 T
—ZE—F%F :1,603,000/87L) © =&t
AE A EULFRIE o

HAPFEAOYEREREBESN S
152,723,000/8 L E 5T AR E B M BT
FRIB o

. A
11. Inventories 1. 7E
2016 2015
—E—XAEF —E—R4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale EEHEEFERE 3,038,330 3,275,625
Inventories-in-transit EERTE 669,960 698,348
3,708,290 3,973,973

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
is shown in note 21.
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12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

P 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

12BERBEEEY

2016 2015

—E-REF —ZT—FHF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FExT FHET

Cash at bank and in hand RITNEFRE 1,973,420 3,153,002
Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) MHIRITTE R (M5t (a)) 6,606 80,725
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEY 1,980,026 3,233,727

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated

RehRAeEEYWEREENTIEE

in the following currencies: & :

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET THETT

HKS BT 58,300 51,293

RMB (Note (b)) AR (Hatb)) 1,265,391 1,195,575

us$ ET 479,841 1,792,885

S$ T 141,784 179,811

THB ER37S 15,636 6,626

RP HEeE 19,074 7,537

1,980,026 3,238,727

Notes: Hi& -

(a) The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was (a) HHETERZERENE50.1% (=
0.1% (2015: 0.33%) per annum. These deposits have an T—HF:0383%)  ZFEFRZTFH
average maturity of 11 days (2015: 8.93 days). DA A11R(-E—FH4E:8.930) -

(b) The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in (b) AEBUARBHBEZHRITELELT
RMB are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion HTERREEZET - B s
of these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies ANREABIELEINBRIBEESE
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject Y EEESTRBEKTFEEG 2 INE
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control &8 Bl 3B o
promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR Y R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

13. Share Capital 13. A&
2016 2015
—E-RF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Authorised: SETE
2,000,000,000 (2015: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000( ZZ—HF :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,000) f& &%
EE0. BT Eimik 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EETEHEZERR :
2016 2015
—E-XEF —T-hF
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
SREE01BT FREECAET
ZEBRTEBRR ZEBETERK
E L] [ #H EfE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
At 1 January R—RA—H 1,455,355,998 145,536  1,525,187,998 152,519
Share options exercised BATR A
(Note (a)) (Hizt(a) - - 240,000 24
Repurchase of own shares BEAF KRR
(Note (b)) (Hiztb) (952,000 (96) (70,072,000) (7,007)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 1,454,403,998 145,440  1,455,355,998 145,536
Notes: Mt
(a) Shares issued under share option scheme (@) AR B8 AR w1 B AT AR

R-_ZE—HEWNMA-_+H BEREE
TE AR B534,0008 TRBEARQ R
240,000k FiMAR - HF 24,0008 T
AR - ME2%EE791,00058 5T 8 5
AR D@ ER 281,000 T2 IRIE
HIRH E216(d)MEFEHERER
HEESREERMDEER -

On 20 April 2015, options were exercised to subscribe for 240,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$534,000 of
which HK$24,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$791,000 were credited to the share premium account. HK$281,000
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.16(d).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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13. RA& #)

Repurchase of own shares (b)  EBREIAHED
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased RBEZET-—X"F+ZA=+—A8H1
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FEA - NRARREZPIERE RS
&
Number of
ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate
shares price paid price paid purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid
B e =25 e
BE A6 ZEREE BRESEKE BREEER REEER
HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT
March 2016 ZZE—-RF=A 200,000 1.66 1.64 330,000
April 2016 —E—XFMA 718,000 1.76 1.72 1,247,140
August 2016 TR FNA 34,000 1.95 1.95 66,300
952,000 1,643,440
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased RHEE—_ZT—H E + = B=+—H1
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FER  ARARBEIMABLEEL S
&
Number of
ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate
shares price paid price paid purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid
fBE e e e
Bm A6 ZERHE ERESER ERBEER BEEER
HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT
July 2015 —E-AFtA 1,470,000 2.49 2.30 3,519,040
August 2015 —ZT—-RF)N\A 7,068,000 2.20 1.99 14,661,100
September 2015 —E-RFNA 61,084,000 2.26 2.07 133,934,420
October 2015 —E—RF+A 450,000 2.18 2.11 978,400
70,072,000 153,087,960
The repurchased shares during the years ended 31 December 2015 and BE_ZE—FEER_ZE—XKE+_-A
2016 were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the S+ —BIFEESED 5D R
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. MAAFEDETRAES B ZER
B2 EE -
Deferred shares (c) EERH

The Company acquired, through a trust setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation, a total of 34,318,000 ordinary shares of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 from the open
market at a total cash consideration of approximately HK$76,741,000.
These shares would be used primarily for providing employment/
executive compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition of shares
are recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

REBEE-ZFT-—XR"F+ZA=+—8H
IEFE ARARAEBEINAERH
BERINEAaR2RMHEKREA HK
34,318,000 AR Al EER - BeR
BAELA76,741,0008 7T - 2SR
DEETEREREAEBNER 17
BREE  ZERBERODKAERES
BanZyRRBECHEBIETER
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13. Share Capital continved)

(d)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the
reporting period

13. RA& (2

(d) RIS EIRRBERARITE 2B REF S

Exercise price 2016 2015

Exercise period TEH THEE —B-—XE —E-—-A8F

17 February 2013 to —E—=%-A+tHZE HK$2.227 11,760,000 11,760,000
16 February 2021 —E-—FZF+XH 2.227# 7T

23 March 2013 to —E-—=F=A=+=H=% HK$2.028 4,920,000 4,920,000
22 March 2021 —E-—%=ZA=-+=H 2.028% 7T

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of
the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@

130 vsST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the new share option scheme may
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and
(iii) the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The vesting period of the options from the date of
grant is determined by the Directors and the options are then
exercisable within a period of ten years including the vesting
period, if any. Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments (continueq)

(@

P 7% R R B R (4R

E-_T-XRNE+_A=+—HIFE

14. LXHQﬁ}iﬁZ*Eﬁ,.

FRIE ()

Share option scheme of the Company (continued) (a) AXATBRETE (2)
No share options were granted under the New Scheme during MEEENERETENEE -
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016. E-—FER-_ZE—RE+_HF=
T—RIEFEANR LM EBRE -
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) LTAEELE ZERRIGRHE -
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt HEZZ—XRFE+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2016: B=+—BIUFE  FEHE
BRIEGAEM RS RDEH:
Outstanding as
at 1 January Exercisable
2016 and as at Exercise Contractual Remaining
31 December 31 December price Vesting term of contractual
Date of grant 2016 2016 (HK$) conditions options life
RB-XK%E
-A-8K
RZB-RE RIB-RE
+=A=t—-B +=ZA=t-H TR BIRE Rex
Riti A8 i RATHE AFTE (B7x) BEGG BNEFEH BHEFEH
23 March 2011 T 4,920,000 4,920,000 2.028 2 Years from 10 Years 4.23 Years
=A=+=H date of grant
BREAH 10 4.235F
eat2fF
17 February 2011 —Z——fF 11,760,000 11,760,000 2.227 2 Years from 10 Years 4.14 Years
ZAt+tH date of grant
ARHAH 10§ 4145
Bat2fF
16,680,000 16,680,000

BEZBRERLAE —F
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments (continueq)

14. LXHEHﬁiﬁZt‘Eﬁ,.

MIH ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) (a) AARIERESE (2
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) UTAEHZ tt% KR AEHE
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt HEZFT—RF+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2015: A=+—8 Jiif AR
RIEAEM RN RDEE:
Outstanding Outstanding Exercisable
as at Exercised as at as at Exercise Contractual Remaining
1 January during 31 December 31 December price Vesting term of contractual
Date of grant 2015 the year 2015 2015 (HKS) conditions options life
RZZE-1% RZZ-1% RIT-1F
—A-A RER TZA=t-B +ZA=t-H 1t fRlltE e
=k MAITHE [y HARTE BNiEhd (%1 R BHES ANEH
23 March 2011 —2——F 4,920,000 — 4,920,000 4,920,000 2.028 2 Years from 10 Years 5.23 Years
“F=tZ=H date of grant
BREAS 105 523
fehpes
17 February 2011 5% 12,000,000 (240,000 11,760,000 11,760,000 2.227 2 Years from 10 Years 5.14 Years
ZA+tA date of grant
BREAH 105 5144
iEitofE
16,920,000 (240,000) 16,680,000 16,680,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during 2015 was HK$2.17.
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15. 2R Al f#

AEEGARAZTKYNEINRFERE
BOHEHNGERRZEHR - AFE
FBREFEARRBESBRER D FI R
FREGZFBHINMT -

15. Reserves of the Company

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:

Capital
Share redemption Capital Deferred  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
RiRE EABEREE EXfHEE EERE REEFR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TET TET TERT
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Hizt) (Hi:z) (Hi:z) (Hr:z)
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE—RF
—A— B8R 834,674 109 19,151 - 97,010 950,944
Loss and total comprehensive FREER
income for the year FHMALE - - - - (9,774) (9,774)
Dividend paid BERRE - - - - (180,001)  (180,001)
Share options exercised BRI R 791 - (281) - - 510
Repurchase of own shares BREARH KR
— Premium paid —-BfaE - - - - (146,081)  (146,081)
- Transfer between reserves —ERER - 7,007 - - (7,007) -
Balance as at 31 December 2015 R -Z—H4F
+=A=t—-8
SOEe 835,465 7,116 18,870 - (245,853) 615,598
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE—RF
—B—RAMEs 835,465 7,116 18,870 - (245853) 615,508
Profit and total comprehensive FRERN &
income for the year YN - - - - 552,761 552,761
Dividend paid BftRE - - - - (180,350) (180,350
Deferred share EER - - = (76,741) = (76,741)
Repurchase of own shares BEA SRR
— Premium paid —BaE - - = = (1,548) (1,548)
- Transfer between reserves —REREE - 96 - - (96) -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 R Z=Z—~%F
+-A=+—-H
ke 835,465 7,212 18,870 (76,741) 124,914 909,720
Note: et -

See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature

and purpose of reserves.

FRRECHEEREN  BAGAEZEY
RUFEE o
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16. Trade and Other Payables

16. EZ R EMENRE

2016 2015

—E—XE —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHx FiTT

Trade payables B S ENFIE 7,430,552 6,745,574
Other payables and accruals oAt S FRIB M T FR IR 660,859 523,411
Deferred income (Note (d)) EIEW A (B 5t () 13,336 12,253
8,104,747 7,281,238

Less: non-current deferred income (Note (d)) B, FEBNERIESEUR A (B 72 () (6,239) (4,994)
8,098,508 7,276,244

(@  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to (a)
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables
by invoice date is as follows:

AEBZEHEEIRAAEERE 2
ZEHNFI0E90H - BEFHEN
REREZBHE D Z2ER DN

PN

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
0 - 60 days 0£60H 7,321,814 6,674,686
Over 60 days @60 H 108,738 70,888
7,430,552 6,745,574
(b) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were by BESREMENRBERETMENT

denominated in the following currencies: HIEHEETE
2016 2015
—EB—RF —FE-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAET
HK$ BT 22,490 44 811
RMB ARE 3,986,032 3,580,909
US$ ETT 3,286,401 2,879,678
S$ FTINE T 246,141 349,677
THB ER 273,633 257,575
RP EE 283,811 163,594
8,098,508 7,276,244
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=z i
16. Trade and Other Payables (ontinveq) 16. EZ R HEMEBENARIE®
(¢) Included in other payables and accruals is an amount (c) HERIRIPINES LML FE47,780,000
HK$47,780,000 (2015: HK$7,780,000) which relates to forward B (ZZT—Ah4F : 7,780,000/ 7T )
foreign exchange contracts. The net notional amount of forward B AT A E M FE A 5RIE R FERTFRIE o
foreign exchange contracts has been disclosed in note 3.1(a). LHMI\E:' HR)FHZESEE M
A@EE -
(d) Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in d) BEERAERFALEBRERESYN
advance on service maintenance contracts. MBEERARE SHNEBERERA -
. AY
Deferred Taxation 17 IR EBIIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under BEEMBNIZAGERERIEEZEESH
the liability method. TE
The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: EEHBEE/(AE)FHEEHOT -
2016 2015
—E-RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 34,411 17,610
(Debited)/credited to the consolidated statement (N Ba) FAGEERER
of profit or loss (Note 23) (H1a£23) (2,013) 18,446
Exchange difference P& 5 =58 1,068 (1,645)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 33,466 34,411
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FANEEHELAERBBEREZD N
year are as follows: ™
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—hF
Deferred tax assets - Inventories and trade EEHEBEEE—FER HK$’000 HK$’'000
receivables provisions B S EWFERE FHBT FHET
At 1 January S—H—H 62,074 54,033
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit STAGEREER
or loss 4,822 9,334
Exchange difference bE H =% (207) (1,293)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 66,689 62,074
mueppEsmRan —T-~s5% 135
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17. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

17. EEHIE 2

2016 2015
—E-REF ZE—RF
Deferred tax liabilities - Accelerated tax EEHEEENEHRE HK$’000 HK$’000
depreciation and others mERHEM FBxT FHIT
At 1 January m—B—8 (27,663) (36,423)
(Debited)/credited to the consolidated statement (NkBa) FtAGEERER
of profit or loss (6,835) 9,112
Exchange difference X ZERE 1,275 (352)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H (33,223) (27,663)
Included in “others” are deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect [Hi BT AR BB INEEE B
of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in the PRC XA EEFERNETEHREE

of HK$23,396,000 (2015: HK$23,362,000).

18. Borrowings

£ 23,396,000 (=& — R F
23,362,000/ 70) °

18. {8 &

2016 2015
—EB—XRE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MisE FHET FHET

Non-current FFRE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIKIRIRITEE (@) 1,848,265 985,311
Finance lease liabilities REREAE () 654 492
1,848,919 985,803

Current TE

Unsecured bank borrowings EIKIRIRITEE (@) 2,340,355 4,670,123
Secured mortgage loan BEMRBER (b) 55,338 64,782
Finance lease liabilities mEMREARE () 429 306
2,396,122 4,635,211
Total borrowings mEs (@) 4,245,041 5,621,014
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18. Borrowings (continuea)

Notes:

(a)

Unsecured bank borrowings

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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18. 6 & (#)

The loans are unsecured and bear interest at rates as disclosed in section
(e) below. As at 31 December 2016, unsecured loans in the amount of
HK$929,992,000 and HK$918,273,000 were repayable on 6 September
2018 and 9 November 2018 respectively. As at 31 December 2015,
unsecured loans in the amount of HK$56,833,000 and HK$928,478,000
were repayable on 19 December 2017 and 6 September 2018

respectively.

Hiat

(a)

EIIFRITEE
EXAEEPRIZ T X ()il E
ZHRERHFgB - -R-_ZT—XFE+_-HA
=+ — H 929,992,000 & 7T &
ﬁ

918,273,000t 2 EIK | E KA
AR_ZE—NFALAXBEZ_Z—N
F+—BNABEE R_ZT—AF+
—A=+4+—H 56,833,000 T &
928,478,000 T 2 MERERH B J
RZZFE—+F+=-A+hhBE=F
NENANBEE -

Secured mortgage loan (b) HIE TEF RIBER
The loan is secured by buildings with net book value of HK$195,303,000 RZE-—RE+ZR=+—HB  BER
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$199,514,000). The loan contains a i iR E 18 /195,308,000 (=
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid T — FHF 199,514,000 0) 2 18
after one year of HK$45,894,000 (2015: HK$55,338,000) is classified FRHEER - L ERAB AR ERH
as current. HEGR MR- FEEENTS
B 5045,894,0008 (= F — A F :
55,338,000 L) DA RANE -
Finance lease liabilities (c) ®EMHESE
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset HREVNNHEEEENEFERET
revert to the lessor in the event of default. HEA  WHEERERAER -
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Gross finance lease liabilities mEEaERE
— minimum lease payments: —HEBEFIE :
Within 1 year 1FER 482 345
Between 1 and 5 years 1FE55F 724 525
1,206 870
Future finance charges on finance leases BRERERRKGES H (123) (72)
1,083 798
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEMEAENRAENT -
is as follows:
Within 1 year 1ER 429 306
Between 1 and 5 years 16255 654 492
1,083 798

BEZBRERLAE —F
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18. Borrowings (continuea)

Notes: (continued)

(d) The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:

18. 6 & (&)

Hiat : (4)

(d) AEBEEEENEEOT :

Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total

BITEE REHESE &t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
E—R"E —_T—hF —RE —ZE—RF —RE —ZET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FHERT FET FERT FET
Within 1 year 1FER 2,395,693 4,634,905 429 306 2,396,122 4,635,211
Between 1 and 2 years 16229 918,273 56,833 375 232 918,648 57,065
Between 2 and 5 years DEFHE 929,992 928,478 279 260 930,271 928,738
4,243,958 5,620,216 1,083 798 4,245,041 5,621,014

(e)  The effective interest rates were as follows: (e) BEFEAEMT -

2016 2015
—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT

Unsecured bank borrowings
Secured mortgage loan
Finance lease liabilities

EEMRITER
BEMIZIBER
MEMERE

1.50%-10.09%
1.15%-1.28%
4.99%-6.79%

1.62%-13.00%
1.48%-1.60%
4.00%-5.74%

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. EENEmEEENFEES
(f) The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the (f) EEMNEEREINTY E81E
following currencies:

2016 2015
— X% TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 55,338 64,782
RMB ARHE 1,612,470 850,980
uss ES 2,380,791 4,460,518
S$ N T 108,312 108,981
THB ik 71,271 20,104
RP EfEfE 16,859 115,649
4,245,041 5,621,014
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19. Revenue and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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19. Rz R D BER

DHENDEBRAEEZESETRE
BEABRFGEOEKRE LD FEERE
EMAEM-—BZHIAMKRE - A%£H

and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior ZEEETHEERABARESE - it
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this E AREBECERETRERASR
regard, the Group's senior executive management monitors the results RUATEEEEFEEREDHEEZE
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases: 4=

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs

within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for

the year is set out below.

(@

Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

Segments

2 &P

WHERXIEIREDBELENHER
MEENRAXOEEZEDE °

ENEMEMZHAERE B IBELE -
BIEMEN S HEREMGNIEE - fln
EERZEMME REMDBARITERA
i °
FAREERERDERFHEHBRIR
ZAIHRESHERMT -

(a) %ﬁ%/'\;
AEBOTEEBIIMOT

Principal activities

TREK

Supply chain business

HIEE RS

Components business

Bl 4 22 75

Finished products
business

IDERES)

Enterprise systems

LEER

IT services

BB RS

Provide Supply Chain solution for the Original Equipment Manufacturer.

RERBEUERRBEHERTR -

Distribution of IT component products (CPUs and hard disks).
DHEEMBE R GER(PREDRERFE) o

Distribution of IT finished products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds,
printers, etc.)

DEEMBREAM(E LER - FRABER - FIRERK 2 LRE - ITHRS <)

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,
databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

HEAXNEAMEERZEOCERATAE(RRENS  BRIERS
E - RERRETEMR) °

< Unix/NTERIS 85 8%

IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

BEARHR AR R MERET RTT - Bl - BERERRT
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continue)

19. Rm R DEBER =)

(@) Business segments (continued) (a) EXK DI
During the year, the Group changed the structure of its internal REAR  AEERFEAMATE
financial reporting to the executive directors which resulted in a FETANRMBRB2EE &
change to the composition of its reportable segments. Supply BWEAMED 2B D EAE
chain business, components business and finished products gE) o  HEHER  BEHEBR
business, which are previously grouped and reported under KmEB(EMBELZ2®RAT D
“Distribution” segment, have been separated out as three HIDH)BEWS R=ZETEKA
different reportable segments. Comparative figures for the WMEDE -  AWHEMBEEZLZE
operating segment information disclosed in this note have been DEHERZEBRBETEERAFE
restated to conform to the current year’s presentation. 2 Z2Y|EF| o
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_FT-—R"F+=ZA=+—H
are as follows: IEEEHNEERNT
Finished
Supply Chain ~ Components products Enterprise IT
business business business systems services Group
HEEER EHER RmER PERGE  ERANERE r5E
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Total segment revenue BRI G 8400525  5231,851 17,978,081 16,283,214 267,647 48,161,318
Segment results DL 228,695 72,187 230,971 256,604 10,779 799,836
Finance costs YEER (141,242)
658,594
Share of associates’ profits 2 /AEFE ARG 36,108
Share of a joint venture's loss 2~ A SR EEE (5,927)
Profit before taxation BRBATER 688,775
Taxation ] (136,860)
Profit for the year FREH 551,915
Reportable segment assets A HENHEE 2,730,762 1,100,125 4,604,359 4,014,817 59,480 12,509,543
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continue)

(@

Business segments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2015

19. WEm RDEBER =)

(a) XKoo z)
HE—ZT—-h&+-_A=+—8°

are as follows: IEFERNDHEEWT ¢
Finished
Supply Chain ~ Components products Enterprise T

business business business systems services Group
e RHER fES RZS  AAMERE PN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEr TiEr TiEn TiEn
Total segment revenue DEh B 8,620,061 7,382,510 14,997,103 14,377,680 198,286 45,575,640
Segment results DEEE 225,223 71,126 163,394 205,640 11,686 677,069
Finance costs BRER (139,738)
537,331
Share of associates’ profits  AMAEEE D AIEF 34,686
Share of a joint venture’s loss /A~ HA S EEE (10,019)
Profit before taxation BB AR 561,998
Taxation A (111,617)
Profit for the year ER T 450,381
Reportable segment assets URENTEE 2,492,678 1,666,667 4,223,458 3,783,320 44542 12,210,665

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there was no
customer with transactions exceeding 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, only one customer with
whom transactions (which amounted to HK$5,767,000,000)
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

AEBWEFEZ T BHZE
TE-XRE+-_A=+—RHBILE
B UTEIXSEBBAEEKZE
10%MEF °

HEzE-_Z—aAFt+=-A=+—
ABLtEE EF8—2X5HHE
BAEBRFZI0%9HNE P (=
5,767,000,0008 ) °
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continue)

(b)

142 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss

and assets
Profit

Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss is not presented as the
segment profit is the same as the profit for the year presented

HRDEBENEEABRERMZE
FIEYF AR A AR R - B & 2 5
2B A B AR S E e RN F R

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. MR o
Assets BE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHBT
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 12,509,543 12,210,665
Goodwill BES 306,905 310,592
Interests in associates REE R AR 529,946 277,805
Interests in a joint venture RELELENER 48,470 55,211
Deferred tax assets FEEFIEE B 66,689 62,074
Other receivables and prepayments b fE U RN IE K B ROE 851,472 618,304
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEBY 1,980,026 3,233,727
Consolidated total assets EBEE 16,293,051 16,768,378
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

; < PaNE-i| -3\ Iy
19. Revenue and Segment Information (continuea 19. Wz KR 7 HE R )
(c) Geographical information (c) HEEHR
The Group’s five business segments operate principally in North AEEONREEB S X2
Asia and South East Asia. TRRMEREE -
2016 2015
ZE-RF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Revenue Wz
North Asia Bl 39,222,760 36,798,568
South East Asia REDR 8,938,558 8,777,072
Total segment revenue 7 EU AR LB KR 48,161,318 45,575,640
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer WHBEBEEPAEERE S ©
is located.
2016 2015
ZE-RF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Assets BE
North Asia Bl 10,255,952 9,978,254
South East Asia R 2,253,591 2,232,411
Reportable segment assets AIREDHEE 12,509,543 12,210,665
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the ARENHEEREEEEH
assets are located. glH o
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20. Other Gains/(Losses), Net

21,

144 vST HOLDINGS LIMITED

20. Ht WA (518) FH

2016 2015

—E-REF —ZT—FHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FA&T

Interest income FEU A 11,092 14,120
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWHE - ENMREEE (46) (406)
Net exchange loss HE 5 518 588 (5,716) (23,642
Other Hitb 3,576 7,239
8,906 (2,689)

Operating Profit

Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following:

21. BE R T

LOm R T MR (GEA) AT S IE R

foe =)
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Cost of inventories FERAN 46,304,580 43,878,639
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments EIRAN(BEESINE)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare —%&  FERREF 484,536 410,258
— Provident fund contributions —REeH-R 64,480 57,196
Operating lease rentals in respect of premises MErRERZEEHERS
and warehouses 57,332 57,836
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
— audit fees —EZER 7,503 4,805
- non-audit fees —FEZRER 1,125 957
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WENREITE 21,669 22,369
Provisions for inventories charged/(written back) FEBENR,(EE) 11,927 (62,732)
Net provision for and net write off of trade E 5 FEW R IB BB F 58 S
receivables HEE 66,723 58,478
Net foreign exchange loss FE 3 518 588
— excluding net exchange loss in other — T EEEMEE
losses HIME 1858 102,672 176,587
The provisions for inventories charged in the current year resulted from AFEENFERE ARG ETHEE

a decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain inventories.
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22.

23.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

Finance Costs 22. B EH
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interest expense on: THFEZMERE
— Bank overdrafts —RITIBEX 11 23
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EIRRIRITEE 140,392 138,960
— Secured mortgage loan —BERBERBER 766 704
— Finance lease liabilities -mEREaE 73 51
141,242 139,738
Taxation 23. M IH
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of REEERRING 2HIBESEETIE
profit or loss represents:
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current taxation AERFRIA
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEREH 10,558 9,784
- Overseas taxation —/BIMRIR 119,709 106,437
Over-provision of Hong Kong Profits BEFRERBIEH
Tax in prior years TR = (292)
Under-provision of overseas taxation in prior years @1F & E /G5 MIIEBET 2 4,580 14,134
Deferred taxation (Note 17) EEFRIB(MaF17) 2,013 (18,446)
136,860 111,617
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated at TE-REBFANEHRBEBIIBEHE
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year —E—-XF+-_A=+—BHItEEZH
ended 31 December 2016. ATERTAEFEHE166% (ZF—H

£ 16.5%)5THE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R 2% MY R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & =& —

23. Taxation (continueq)

Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated

NET_A=+—BLLFE

23. B8 (=)

BN IR IR F A 2 fh AT AR B A A AR

€ o AL

assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the EEETEEREMEERERHTX
countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate. E -

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

MAENIIERECER ST NE —
A—BEBIROEFMEELENRKESIK
MABB AR BUWE%HTERT -

ANEE R AT S 2 I EEREENR
EEELZEWSRIEENT

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation BRI A 688,775 561,998
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%1E 113,648 92,730
Effect of different tax rates in different tax AR R AR TR =X
jurisdictions a7 - 7,326 170
Income not subject to taxation AR WA (7,285) (7,279
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes IS S TSR 2 14,697 8,500
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 4,580 13,842
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised  {hsF RIERF I E BT &
2 2,781 439
Tax effect of withholding tax on profit of the TEIR B BIF /8 A B A
PRC subsidiaries KRS s B 1,113 3,215
Taxation charge BMESH 136,860 111,617

24. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the

20 KRR EUBEABE

Company 22 Al

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the BE_FT - AF+ZA=1t—HL#F

year ended 31 December 2016 is dealt with in the financial statements R NNEE: o3 E /\ yg 1l ) /& B

of the Company to the extent of HK$552,761,000 (2015: loss of 552,761,000 T(=ZF —H%F : EBE

HK$9,774,000). 9,774,000/%73)5/\\\$Aﬂaﬁ%#&%‘#ﬁ
g .
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

25. Dividends 25. & B
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FRAELENSTARQARE
Company attributable to the year mEFEAEARE
2016 2015
—e-x%  —T-uF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHTT
Final dividend proposed after the end of the RIS BREEIR RIS
reporting period of approximately HK12.4 cents G & & @A 4912, 4741l
(2015: approximately HK12.4 cents) (Z=—HF:
per ordinary share #912.47%840) 180,000 180,000
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period REEHRE BRI R B E
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting R EHRERBAE -
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FRHERIRS E— 8K
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FEREENFANDTRE
approved and paid during the year #mEFEEARE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AIF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix FiTT
Final dividend in respect of the previous FRHfE MRS BB E—8
financial year, approved and paid during the BEER KRR BFRE
year of HK12.4 cents (2015: HK11.8 cents) BERA124BW(ZE—H
per ordinary share F 1 11.881) 180,350 180,001
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26. Earnings Per Share 26. IR & F
Basic HR
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based FABRERBANNDEARGEZFZE
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of A JEAE % F1551,915,0008 T ( =& —
HK$551,915,000 (2015: HK$450,381,000) and the weighted average A 450,381,000 0 ) M B #1TRR
of 1,442,286,000 shares (2015: 1,504,126,000 shares) in issue. 2 N5 81,442,286,000 % ( =
T—AF:1,504,126,000 )T EB
ST
2016 2015
—E—XF ZE—RF
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—HEBITERRK
(thousands) (F8) 1,455,356 1,525,188
Exercise of share options (thousands) TR (TR = 338
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) ORI, (TR (697) (21,400)
Purchase of deferred shares (thousands) BEIEERS (TR (12,373) -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares as R+—A=+—BE@Ek
at 31 December (thousands) niEFHE(FR) 1,442,286 1,504,126
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREEARZF (FREN) 38.27 29.94
Diluted s
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based FRNERBERANDEARAREEZFS
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of A FEAE 4 551,915,000 T (=& — A
HK$551,915,000 (2015: HK$450,381,000) and the weighted average % 450,381,000 7T ) & B hn 4% F
number of shares of 1,445,972,000 (2015: 1,506,715,000 shares), ¥ 801,445,972,000f%x( = —H F
calculated as follows: 1,506,715,000/% ) st & -
2016 2015
—E—RE —FE-AF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in B BT AR hnaE 19 28
issue (thousands) (FR) 1,442,286 1,504,126
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share R B AR 2 R
options (thousands) (Fh%) 72 2,589
Effect of deemed issue of deferred shares for nil RIEAEREBRITELERMDE
consideration (thousands) FE(TI’) 3,614 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for GRS Rz T
diluted earnings per share (thousands) e (FR) 1,445,972 1,506,715
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREERF(FRB) 38.17 29.89
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Emoluments

(@

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

2T EEREREEENE

(a) EEM <
REAENIERNTARAES

Fees

Other emoluments
— Basic salaries and housing allowances
— Discretionary bonus
— Contributions to pension scheme

2B EELT
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THETT
677 673
—HEAXFHe RFEREER 11,281 9.641
7,882 5,352
149 195
19,989 15,861
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE T — A"F+_A=+—HBILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 27 EERSREEENE
Emoluments (continued) (#&)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME 2
The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31 RBEEZE—R"F+RA=+—
December 2016 is set out below: HIEFE JSEFz2MaE20
™~
Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXHER
Bspg e EREH Mg RN MR ait
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TET
Executive Directors WITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,200 2,800 18 8,018
Chow Ying Chi PHE - 1,179 2,430 59 3,668
Ong Wei Hiam, William TER 77 2,467 700 18 3,262
Chan Hoi Chau BREM - 786 1,220 18 2,024
Li Yue =35 - 515 387 18 920
Yao Jie A - 1,134 345 18 1,497
Non-executive Directors FRITES
Liu Li 217 50 - - - 50
Liang Xin 2 120 - - - 120

Independent Non-executive By JFE1TES

Directors

Lam Hin Chi ERY 120 - - - 120
Li Wei 3 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HAR 70 - - - 70
Wang Xiaolong TE 70 - - - 70
Ng Yat Cheung RBE 50 - - - 50

677 11,281 7,882 149 19,989

150 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

P 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

(@

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out below:

2T EEREREEENE

(%)

(a)

BEEME 2

RBE-F-—AF+=A=1—
HIEFE SEFZ2WMeEHII®W
B

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
2XFe RIREHE
BENE we  REEEH BETEAL R A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FAET FET
Executive Directors BTE=Z
Li Jialin M - 5,200 2,000 18 7,218
Chow Ying Chi BEE - 1,182 1,630 141 2,953
Ong Wei Hiam, William &M 73 2,474 602 18 3,167
Chan Hoi Chau BRaM - 785 1,120 18 1,923
Non-executive Directors FEHITES
Liu Li 213 120 - - - 120
Liang Xin 2 120 - - - 120
Independent Non-executive B IEHITES
Directors
Lam Hin Chi ERD 120 - - - 120
Li Wei e 120 - - - 120
Ng Yat Cheung RBE 120 - - - 120
673 9,641 5,352 195 15,861

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$430,000 (2015: HK$360,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the current and prior years.

During the current and prior years, no Director of the Company
waived any emoluments.

X EsEEME BRI
TR FEHITE EMA430,0008
TT(ZZE—HF : 360,000 7T) °

REMMBEFEBRERZEZA
ITXAERAME - EARIIEE
MAREBLBEMARNEE R
BRI RBBAEE -

REFMRBEFE  XARAESF
WE N BEREEMME -
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 27 EERSREEENE
Emoluments (continued) (#&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals by EEESFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the rEEBFAzAEZMEEE AT
Group for the year included two (2015: two) Directors whose BEMEB(ZE—0F: MEB)E
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. T HEZHEER LXFET
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2015: three) ZAMHARE - REFREZNTFH
individuals during the year are as follows: H=ZB(ZTE—RF: =&)AL
ZBemT
2016 2015
—E-RE —FE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FIT
Fees we - 88
Basic salaries and allowances B FOER 4,332 5,161
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 6,511 6,125
Contributions to pension schemes RIRFTEIH R 77 577
10,920 11,951
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeENTFT&EE :

Number of individuals

A
Emolument band i & & E 2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7L & 3,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 724,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 & 5,000,000/ 7T = 1
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28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. &SRS RER KM=

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated IZ? BARMNBELEREBREE
. ey
from operations FECHIER
2016 2015
—EB—RF —hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Profit before taxation BB R A 688,775 561,998
Interest income FLEWA (11,092) (14,120)
Interest expense 2R 141,242 139,738
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BEREETE 21,669 22,369
Share of associates’ profits DAL N B (36,108) (34,686)
Share of joint venture’s loss MEEBEER 5,927 10,019
Loss on disposal of property, plant and THEME  BEN
equipment BiE 2 B 46 406
Operating profit before working capital changes BEESEBA 2 EERA 810,459 685,724
Changes in working capital BEESED
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b FEUK (651,796) (904,508)
Inventories 8 265,683 (888,861)
Trade and other payables B o REMENT 823,509 1,777,622
Net cash generated from operations KPR R & F 5 1,247,855 669,977
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29. Commitments

(@

154 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had commitments to
make capital contributions of HK$235,860,000 (2015: Nil) to
certain investments.

Commitments under operating leases

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

29. & IE

(a)

BAREE

RZE—ARF+_A=+—8"
REEHRERAE TREFELER
S¥%4235,860,0008 (-2 —H
F T )T EE

KEMERT 2 &L

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—8"
AREBERBAUHBEZLZHE
MAE sz BEXEREENTRELRE
R

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—AHF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHIT

Within 1 year 1R 39,031 48,969
Between 1 and 5 years 1F 5259 18,696 23,934
57,727 72,903

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of premises and
warehouses held under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of one to three years, with an option to
renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Annual Report 2016
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30. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

@

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li”),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$200,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2015: HK$200,000).

Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2015: HK$15,000).

License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co., a
company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of HK$14,000
in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License to Kong
Lung Ind Co. (2015: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$64,358,000
during the year (2015: HK$62,664,000).

30.BEBEALTRS
LATR 73 B 58

(a) EBER

REEHERARBDEFRNTES
FEMEE(NETREDABIER
RZ2RAEREREER QAR —
MEEEERIY—MHEERHS -
BEZHE  FAEBREFER
ERARLZF AH200,0008 T
(ZZ—FH% :200,00087T) °

THEHETZRS

(b) A

REEHEARBDEFRNITES
TRERTERMRZ AR EPH
BARAAG Y —HREHEWH
ZoREZHE  AKEREF
BERAGZF ATHE15,000%8
T(ZZE—RF :15,00087T) °
RIRE

AREEHRFHEEABFTERENA
,%%‘E,\%“ RIS — Mt e
BEZHE  AEBERPEE
WERE AN ERE14,000%8
TFAEEERARN(ZE—RF
14,0008 7L) °

d) TEEEBAENES (B
MM E27HE 2= 5)

EFRN TEEF f@)\,\%‘\iﬁj
64,358,000 T( — T — A F :
62,664,000 7T) °

—_
()

~
e
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31. Statement of Financial Position of the 31. 2 2 7] B ik R &

156 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Company
As at 31 December 2016

R=ZZB-XR"F+=ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M FHET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mME - WENEE 789 935
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKRE 2,115,161 1,560,713
2,115,950 1,561,648
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TEFRTE 309 309
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 18,742 47,695
19,051 48,004
Total assets HBMEE 2,135,001 1,609,652
EQUITY EE
Share capital A& A 13 145,440 145,536
Reserves i 15 909,720 615,598
Total equity R 1,055,160 761,134
LIABILITIES g8f&
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary 1 — R B A R RIE 1,079,754 848,488
Other payables and accruals HoAth JE SRR R BT FRIE 87 30
Total liabilities HBEE 1,079,841 848,518
Total equity and liabilities EErEEERE 2,135,001 1,609,652
Net current liabilities REBAEFEE (1,060,790) (800,514)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,055,160 761,134

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

EEgN _T—tF=A-+—H#tE

March 2017. R ETE -
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi

ZEM MEE

Director Director

EF EF
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments and New
Standards Issued but not yet Effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash &A G ERE7S  He nEk WHEHE 1 January 2017

flows: Disclosure initiative ZIEET —F—+tF—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: BAEGTEAFE125 - FTER  AHEHEE 1 January 2017

Recognition of deferred tax assets for BIAERE T IH & E IR 55T —E—+F—A—H

unrealised losses

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BBMBHRELERESR - 2T A 1 January 2018

—T-NF—H—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with BBV REERFEGSR - KHFHEEFET L 1 January 2018

customers B A —T-NF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based BB EERES  URGABERZZ 1 January 2018

payment: Classification and measurement 11 URGBEB TN G2 ERE —E-N\F—A—H
of share-based payment transactions ZIEET

HKFRS 16, Leases EEMBIMELERE165 - HE 1 January 2019

—E-NnF—HA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have impacts on the
Group’s financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its assessment,
further impacts may be identified in due course.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments and New NR.BE-_F—R"F+=ZA=
Standards Issued but not yet Effective for the +—HIEFESEMEN
year ended 31 December 2016 ontinued) REMZIEET RFFLER A

BEFERZEE
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments ERVMBRMELENEIR £
mIA
HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for BEEVBHRELEANEIRERNREEASR
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition MITAGHEEAENRBELENTES
and measurement. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group ETERIES9Y: - 2@ T A - HR KA
expected that the new requirements of HKFRS 9 on classification 2 REBVLINE  AEEBEHB AN
and measurement of financial assets and calculation of impairment HHREENFIORBEELERAES R
of financial assets may have an impact on the Group’s financial BEUNRGESHEERMBENNEEA
statements. However, a more detailed analysis is required to determine RUHASEMBREREKTE - A
the extent of the impact. HEFAERONMUBRELENIEE -
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers ERUKRE i?’E- Bl 5155 >
REHEEFIILEHZBA
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, BBV BEREERE 1550 B IAIE B UK
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and wmAER - BEGHEAE18% - Wa
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which (’FE% HEEMRREHRRBAEEZK
specifies the accounting for revenue from construction contracts. @m)RBEBGHEREIIH - BESH
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expected that the (FIAREEAREMN G RERE)
new requirements of HKFRS 15 may have an impact on the Group’s BB - AEBEERESM B R
financial statements on timing of revenue recognition. However, a more HAREBE1SR AR T A H A EER
detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of the impact. R RAERR T FEERNTE -
A REEFRHOMUBREZENRE
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —~"F+_A=+—BILtFE

Possible Impact of Amendments and New
Standards Issued but not yet Effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (continueq)

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of
the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets,
in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties, plant and machinery and office equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. The Group wiill
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new
assets and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on adoption
of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

Non-adjusting Events after the Reporting Period

In February 2017, the Group had voluntarily repaid an unsecured non-
current bank borrowing with outstanding balance of US$120 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$930 million).

2. BE=-ZE—XRF+=ZH=

T—HIEFEEEMEN
RERZAERT R FER A

BEERZEE »)

RS MR 165 - E
TBEE BV G EENE 16T E AR
FEPAABRBENOGESERNREBA
REAR - AT - —BRABBNBRSE
HBIF165, - AEABTERORMERE
MCEHE - R - XBEBREZRTEMNHR
R A AR KB RO
FIEIR BEREMHES ST - AN ZBLOMLA
HE - ABEABERSKEREEERENR
ERRARGEHEEE - REERERED
[EREIEE  RYTHRAZEEREE
% ABEAGEREESEERMELERN
FMERZIREAEEENE - MIERHEE
NERSREERARBLCEAOMELD
HERXWRBRER - (ERERNERS
o REATERTIKEEH RN EAR
RAHEERHEB A1 2@ A T) RIEE
BEEMNHE  RZEBAT Hefx
HHHE BT BRI IR R AL TR o

EEUMBRELNEICRBEIERER
SEESHEAOERBEARDE - BELE
BEMAERB(RAROBREERE
MEFRENE - BRAFNGARATR
HEEEERBEEN  BEHHEEH
ARGARERANERARXNBEELER
g REBER LT ANERMNRH
EERERMBTEV B RS ENFE 165
ZR BRI S LA RITESY
8% AEBESAETERFANDNT
NEERRAEBHEREERE165
REEHOAERELNNEENRAE
ME R e

BRERRFARESE

RN_ZE—tF-F  AEFTHEZER
HIERBIETEELM 2BET(HERN
#99.3 L) °

EHERERAE —=-—~aen 159



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEEER

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

AREBRERNEVRFELRENREE
HEBEEHEHINWT

Year ended 31 December #Z+=-A=+—H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF —E-RF —T—NF —T-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEL FEL FET FET
Revenue Wz 48,161,318 45,575,640 41,892,709 40,239,286 37,097,592
Profit before taxation BEALE A 688,775 561,998 769,029 658,802 571,561
Taxation #m (136,860) (111,617) (143,361) (133,675) (107,162)
Profit for the year FREF 551,915 450,381 625,668 525,127 464,399
Attributable to: T AT -
Equity Shareholders of the ARAERFEA
Company 551,915 450,381 607,374 502,725 444,236
Non-controlling interests R ER - - 18,294 22,402 20,163
551,915 450,381 625,668 525,127 464,399
Assets and Liabilities
EERAEE
As at 31 December R+ =H=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF —E-RE —T—MF —T-=F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEL FHBL FEL FAL
Total assets MEE 16,293,051 16,768,378 13,129,424 11,527,662 9,847,426
Total liabilties T (12,429,413) (12,949,271) (9,136,466) (7,907,262) (6,612,744)
Total equity g% 3,863,638 3,819,107 3,992,958 3,620,400 3,234,682
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